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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of
China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017 (the “Year").

The Company is a closed-ended investment company established on
1 February 2010. By investing in both private and public enterprises
supported by the new economies of Greater China, the Company is
devoted to achieving long-term capital appreciation for professional
investors.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the Year, the Company maintained a long-term investment strategy
in both public and private equity markets. The Company held fourteen
equity securities listed in Hong Kong, one private equity fund and five
private equities as of 31 December 2017, in which the largest one is in the
financial services sector focusing on Hong Kong market. The Company
reported net loss attributable to shareholders of HK$510,737,658 during
the Year, which consisted of the net loss in fair value of HK$472,963,362
taken on the investment positions in the portfolio.

The net asset value of the Company decreased during the Year alongside
with the slowdown in the Chinese economy and the rising volatility of
the Hong Kong stock market. As at 31 December 2017, the Company
reported an audited net asset value of approximately HK$0.15 per
share. The net loss is mainly attributable to both net realised loss of
HK$291,987,125 and net unrealised loss of HK$180,976,237 on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as a result of recent Hong Kong
stock market volatility. The Company will continue to monitor investments
cautiously due to recent uncertain market conditions.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the Year, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") Government
deepened its structural reform aiming to create a healthy social
environment for a sustainable yet efficient economic growth. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, during the Year China’s
gross domestic product (GDP) recorded an increase of 6.9%, as the
official figure topped the government target of around 6.5% and beating
analyst poll. The old economy which is slowing down, but the new
economy are showing signs of growth and strength, which may surprise
many analysts.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The benchmark of Shanghai Composite Index increased merely
approximately 6.6% during the Year, while Hang Seng Index surged
approximately 36.0%. During the Year, the Company adopted a timely
and appropriate investment measure during the various ups and downs
in response to the volatile market sentiment and complicated government
policies. The Company explored and detected investment opportunities
emerging from the sectors benefiting from the economic transformation
in PRC, to obtain a substantial net asset appreciation. The Company will
continue to implement its comprehensive risk management strategy with
an aim to achieve growing returns on investments to our shareholders.
During the Year, the Company has invested two new private equities,
making a total of six unlisted investments in our diversified portfolio.
The Company believes they will potentially bring greater return with
the upcoming reform alongside with listed investments in portfolio. Our
Company will explore more investment opportunities toward private
equities and other unlisted investments to benefit our investors and
shareholders.

As global economy and politics are facing more risk, especially with
Trump’s administrative and DPRK politic risks, the Company will exercise
risk management control. The US Federal Reserve will be cautious to raise
interest rate regarding its inflation rate and many expects three hikes by
the end of 2018. In addition, the PRC Government continues to focus
on quality over quantity as it overhauls its growth model. Therefore, the
Company remains cautiously optimistic on the prospects of securities
market in China and Hong Kong. The Company will continue to deploy
an investment strategy focusing on Greater China and closely monitor
changes in the global markets. With our professional investment and
risk management team, we are confident to capture valuable investment
opportunities to maximise profit for our shareholders.

Gu Xu
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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INVESTMENT REVIEW

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company held twenty investments as of 31 December 2017,

comprising fourteen equity securities listed in Hong Kong, one private

equity fund in the Cayman Islands, three private equities in Hong Kong

and two private equities in British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Company discloses its ten largest

investments and all individual investments with value exceeding 5%

of the Company’s gross assets with brief description of the investee

companies as follows:

At 31 December 2017

Listed Equity Securities - Hong Kong

B E R wm A AT

RECIRE

AAREZE2017F 128316 - +EERE -
EPRETHERES LMNERES - —18
RASHENALEREES - —THREBNTL
SRR K PR IE A R B 2 BE S IO FL S ARAEE -

REEBHERIMAERAARZES LMARRI
(T EMRA)E21126FTABHRE - AAF
BREE+RASARERMBELNEEBEAAR
AIMEES%MIRE  ERMREQFTNER
By

20175128318

LiEmEE - EE

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
A 214 ANE  MEE 4R0R
FRERT  FRELT AR B Eh/Ek fgE
FREARER RIS kit Exihl BE B Wi/ (58) BEFE k& [Zpil4
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Rizt1) (Fts2)
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn TEL TEn TEL
(3)  Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited Bermuda 140,000,000 ordinary 4.54% 30,529 50,400 19,871 HK$91.22 - 26.17
shares of million
HK$0.01 each
EBoRERERAA ARE 140,000,000% 91,220,000
BREE0ET B
ZERR
(b)  Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited ~ The Cayman Islands 18,493,000 ordinary 1.28% 418 5,455 1238 HKS1.68 - 283
shares of million
HK$0.01 each
HERRARERARAA RERS 18.493,000% 1,680,000
BIREE.01AT iy
LERR
() Classified Group (Holdings) Limited The Cayman Islands 2,400,000 ordinary 0.54% 3360 4,080 720 HK$0.63 - 212
shares of million
HK$0.01 each
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited ~~ FEEE 2,400,000% 630,000
BIRER.01AT i
LEER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T DT

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
i) BB ARE WAEE AL
FBoET  FRELE 2R B oh/EK EE
fiREARER HRR IS - v ] S w i/ (68) BEFE k& BAl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(W) (WtzE2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
(d)  Town Health International Medical Bermuda 29,114,000 ordinary 0.39% 41,835 3,686 (38,150) HK$16.07 82 191
Group Limited shares of million
HK$0.01 each
RRARERSEARAR BRE 29,114,000 16,070,000
BiREEN0ET i
LERK
(e) Lerado Financial Group Company Limited Bermuda 90,000,000 ordinary 391% 18,000 2113 (15,887) HK$53.63 - 1.10
shares of million
HK$0.5 each
EReREBERAA BRE 90,000,000 53,630,000
BREE0SET BT
LEER
Private Equities — British Virgin Islands RERE-ZBEELEHE
Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
k& BB ARE WAEE (AL
Fe28f  FRELH 2R B Bh/Ek BEE
FREAAER AR Rfwt  BRLA B mE i/ (68) BEFE ke BAl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Rizt1) (WtzE2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL T ThI
(f)  Morris Global Group Limited British Virgin Islands 48 shares of 17.52% 42,799 43,500 701 HK$31.54 - 22.59
(Formerly known as Gransing USD1 each million
Financial Holdings Limited)
Moris Global Group Limited EEBRIHE 481k 31,540,000
(FIRERERARARAA) EhEEIET BT
Wi
(99 WinHealth International Company Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 84 shares of 8.40% 30,000 27,440 (2,560) HK$4.60 - 14.25
USD1 each million
ERERERAR RERAES 84k 4,600,000
BREEIZT B
IRt
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S BT

Private Equities — Hong Kong RERE-FE
Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
k5 2ER ARE WAEE (AL
FE2ET  FRELH 25 B h/Ek EE
fiREARER MRS LS v %] S w i/ (BR) BEFE RE BAl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
tiRa)) tik7)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Fir T Thr
() Help U Credit Finance Limited Hong Kong 37,000 shares of 19.95% 19,000 16,570 (2,430) HK$15.94 - 8.60
HK$1 each million
EARBERAR 0 37,000% 15,940,000
BRAGIEL B
LR
(i) Alpha Financial Group Limited Hong Kong 555,555 shares of 9.99% 8,000 11,350 3,350 HK$5.97 - 589
(Formerly known as Ample HKS$1 each million
Orient Capital Limited)
BRAREEARAT Bk 555,555 5,970,000
(BREERAERERAT) BRAGIEL BT
R
() Sense Key Design Holdings Limited Hong Kong 199 shares of 19.90% 25,000 7176 (17.824) HK$0.94 - 373
HKS$1 each million
R TRERARLA Bk 199% 940,000
EhEEET BT
LR

FETEEREBR AR / FIR 2017 9




Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T DT

At 31 December 2016

Listed Equity Securities - Hong Kong

Name of investee

franasR

Place of
incorporation

atfRE L B

R2016512A31H

LhEEES &

Proportion Dividend % of

of Netasset  received/ gross

Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
held owned Cost value  recognised Company year  Company

k& 2ER ARE WAEE (AR

FeoEf  FRELH 2R Bt Bh/Ek hgE

Ro#E AU B wE W&/ (58 EEFE ks Al
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(B3E3) (B3k2)

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL Thr Thr Thr
Luen Wong Group Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 8,120,000 ordinary 0.65% 2,111 149,570 147,459 HK$0.54 - 20.88
shares of HK$0.01 million
each
RS EERERA REHE 8,120,000 540,000
SRERN0ET iy
LEER
China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited Bermuda 69,600,000 ordinary 2.97% 22,294 45,240 22,946 HK$17.83 - 632
(Formerly known as RCG Holdings Limited) shares of HK$0.04 million
each
hEEA XN ERERAR BRE 69,600,000 17,830,000
(FIRZBEERE(TR)BRAA) BREE0.MET BT
LERR
Town Health International Medical Group Bermuda 31,704,000 ordinary 041% 46,708 39,313 (7,395) HK$17.92 31 549
Limited shares of HK$0.01 million
each
RRERBEEEARAT BRE 31,704,000 17,920,000
BIREHE.01AT iy
LERR
China Parenting Network Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 14,002,000 ordinary 1.36% 19,463 36,405 16,942 RMB4.86 - 5.08
shares of HK$0.01 million
each
HEIEREEERARAR REHE 14,002,000% AE®
BIREE.01AT 4,860,000
LEBR
LEAP Holdings Group Limited The Cayman Islands 70,000,000 ordinary 2.66% 26,250 36,400 10,150 HK$9.22 - 508
shares of HK$0.01 million
each
HERREEERA REHE 70,000,008 9,220,000
BIREHE.0IAT iy
LEBR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S BT

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company year  Company
i) 5} ARE WAEE  (ALE
FBoET  FRELE 25 B oh/EK BEE
FrRENR R Rl iAR LOE ISt %] B e b/ (58) BEFHE ke Bl
(Note 3) (Note 2)
iGz) (R3k2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T T Thr
Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Bermuda 289,800,000 ordinary 543% 40,297 30,719 (9,578) HK$53.94 - 429
Technology Investments Limited shares of HK$0.01 million
each
ERPEVHRRERRAA BRE 289,800,000%%; 53,940,000
BiREEN0ET iy
LEREK
Hong Kong Education (Int') Investments Limited  Bermuda 22,000,000 ordinary 4.02% 11,060 23,930 12,920 HK§15.53 - 335
shares of HK$0.05 million
each
EEHE (AR REEEERAT BRE 22,000,000 15,530,000
BiREE005ET i
LEREK
Convoy Global Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 93,564,000 ordinary 0.63% 47 21426 (25,795) HK$30.83 = 299
shares of HK$0.10 million
each
RERRARERAA REHE 93,564,000 30,830,000
BiREEL10ET i
LERR
AMCO United Holding Limited Bermuda 36,240,000 ordinary 1.95% 14748 21,019 6,271 HK$5.91 - 293
shares of HK$0.01 million
each
ERERERAT BRE 36,240,000 5,910,000
BREEN0ET iy
LERR
PETEIRE AR AR / F5) 2017 11




Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T DT

Private Equity - British Virgin Islands

RERE-RBELEHE

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company year  Company
L] B3 AR WAEE DR
B8  FRELT AR B Bh/ER agE
FiREARER AR RitE  ERHA o mE BE/(58) BETE RE Aokt
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(F:3) (Ktzt2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TER TEL
Morris Global Group Limited British Virgin Islands 24 shares of 17.52% 38419 52,539 14,120 HK$21.05 - 733
(Formerly known as Gransing Financial USD1 each million
Holdings Limited)
Moris Global Group Limited EBRIES 2R 21,050,000
(AIS S BARARAR) SREEIZT i
U
Notes: F%E

(1) The unrealised gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the Year.

2) The calculation of net assets attributable to the Company is based on the latest
published interim/annual reports of the respective investments at the end of each
reporting period.

(3) The unrealised gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the year ended 31 December 2016.

A brief description of the business and financial information of the
investments is as follows:

(@ Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (“Jun Yang”) is principally
engaged in financial services businesses. The audited loss
attributable to shareholders of Jun Yang for the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$922,661,000 and the
audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Jun Yang as at
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$2,009,327,000. The fair
value of the investment in Jun Yang is based on quoted market bid
prices.

12 China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (“Xinhua") is principally
engaged in cleaning and media businesses. The unaudited loss
attributable to shareholders of Xinhua for the six months ended
30 September 2017 was approximately HK$7,775,000 and the
unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of Xinhua as at
30 September 2017 was approximately HK$131,038,000. The fair
value of the investment in Xinhua is based on quoted market bid
prices.

Classified Group (Holdings) Limited (“Classified”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation of restaurants
and the production and sales of bakery products. The audited
loss attributable to shareholders of Classified for the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$35,972,000 and the
audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Classified as at
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$116,864,000. The fair
value of the investment in Classified is based on quoted market bid
prices.

Town Health International Medical Group Limited (“Town Health"”)
is principally engaged in the provision of healthcare and dental
services, managed care business and beauty and cosmetic medicine
business. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of Town
Health for the six months ended 30 June 2017 was approximately
HK$43,517,000 and the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of Town Health as at 30 June 2017 was approximately
HK$4,119,476,000. The trading of shares of Town Health has
been suspended since 27 November 2017. The fair value of the
investment in Town Health is based on valuation by independent
valuer.

Lerado Financial Group Company Limited (“Lerado”) is principally
engaged in the financial services, manufacture and sales of medical
products and plastic toys business. The unaudited loss attributable
to shareholders of Lerado for the six months ended 30 June 2017
was approximately HK$461,741,000 and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Lerado as at 30 June 2017 was
approximately HK$1,371,710,000. The trading of shares of Lerado
has been suspended since 6 June 2017. The fair value of the
investment in Lerado is based on valuation by independent valuer.

(b)

(e)

Bl

B E R wm A AT

EBMAREERER AR ([FE]) *
ENFBRREEEL - MERREZE
20179 H30H LE/N il A FE(h R EZ
5184 57,775,000/ 7T * MFTEBRRR
20179F9 A30R 2 B R BIZEEFAE
#9/5131,038,000/8 7T » FIERLEH AT
BENERTSHREFE -
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([ Classified ]) R EMB AR EENREER
BRERMEERNEEREEER
Classified iR R & = 201712 A 31 H 1+
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(f)  Morris Global Group Limited (“Morris Global”) is principally
engaged in provision of quality brokerage, corporate finance, asset
management and financial adviser services to institutional and
individual investors through its subsidiaries. The fair value of the
investment in Morris Global is based on valuation by independent
valuer.

(g0 WinHealth International Company Limited (“WinHealth”) is
principally engaged in pharmaceutical products distribution in
mainland China through its subsidiaries. WinHealth owns a number
of exclusive distribution rights on patented drugs in mainland
China. The fair value of the investment in WinHealth is based on
valuation by independent valuer.

(h) Help U Credit Finance Limited (“Help U") is principally engaged
in money lending business in Hong Kong. Help U is a licensed
money lender and provides secured and unsecured loans to both
individuals and corporations. The fair value of the investment in
Help U is based on valuation by independent valuer.

(i) Alpha Financial Group Limited (“Alpha”) is principally engaged
in underwriting and placing of securities. The fair value of the
investment in Alpha is based on valuation by independent valuer.

()  Sense Key Design Holdings Limited (“Sense Key"”) is principally
engaged in provision of custom interior design services for
residential and commercial projects in a broad range of styles and
sensibilities. The fair value of the investment in Sense Key is based
on valuation by independent valuer.

The top three investments with realised gain and loss for the Year are
summarised as below:

Top three realised gain for the Year

Name of investment

() Morris Global Group Limited ([ Morris Global |)
TEFREMBARIMEEBERILAKE
ERHEEBELL  ERE  EEER
MBI R IR % 275 © Morris Globall& &
A EDERBE L HERM 2 HEE -

(9) #MRERERAR([#R)ETZERBE
MEBARRHEANEDHEEER - &
BIEAZEENEY R EAENER
DR HRREN R FEDEREL
A fh{EFE

(h EBEAPBERRBRTEADETERELE
REEEXL - BEA/TEBEA @
BARARRHEE M REEIRE
BEARENRFEDENE L GER 2
fBERH -

() BAREASEERAR(EEEZER
ERFEHMCE  ERERENATE
TYERBI L EMZ HEAE -

() HERTIREBARIATHREDE
EREHEFERBEEBRHEERSE

BB HEZARRYE - REKRE
A HETIENBI (GER 2 (AEE -

RAFEHRBEEHE WS RBIBZ = AIRER
TR
REE=ARCEHWKHE

Realised gain

REEH 2 # R E
HK$'000

FHT

Winto Group (Holdings) Limited HREEGER)BRAR 5,738
Luen Wong Group Holdings Limited BT S BRI B PR A A 4,261
Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited EE & RIS B B R A A 4,243
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Top three realised loss for the Year

Name of investment

B E R wm A AT

TEE=AREREESE

Realised loss

REEW E8RER

HK$'000

FAT

China Green (Holdings) Limited AR B R m(ER) BRA A 50,661

First Credit Finance Group Limited F—EReREERERAA 34,860
Interactive Entertainment China Cultural BRABX RN EBR AR

Technology Investment Limited 30,996

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

The Company has maintained a sufficient cash position which will allow it
to capture opportunities with promising returns in both listed and private
equities.

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio, defined as total debts divided
by shareholders’ equities, was 61.5% (31 December 2016: 52.7%). As
at 31 December 2017, the Company has margin payable to securities
brokers of HK$5,646,820 with interest rate 8% per annum (31 December
2016: 8%-10%), a short term loan HK$35,000,000 (31 December 2016:
Nil) with interest rate 8.5% and one outstanding unlisted and unsecured
coupon notes at amortised cost of HK$31,976,320 with interest rate 7.5%
per annum (31 December 2016: HK$69,285,628). Details of the issuance
of notes can be referred to the announcement dated 11 March 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the Year (2016: Nil).

CHARGES ON COMPANY'’S ASSET AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had pledged Hong Kong listed
securities of approximately HK$62.8 million to secure the margin payables
to the securities broker (31 December 2016: HK$495.9 million).

There were no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017
(31 December 2016: Nil).

RBEE  UBERREEER
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=%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On the Listing Date on 6 January 2011, the Company completed a
share placement and a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each were placed at a price of HK$1.03 per share for a total cash
consideration, excluding the related issue expenses, for approximately
HK$312.1 million. Subsequent to the listing, the Company had acquired
additional capital by completion of rights issue and placing of new shares
under general mandate. As at 31 December 2017, the capital of the
Company comprises of 778,831,198 ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each.

RIGHTS ISSUE

Rights Issue on the basis of three rights shares for every two
existing shares with bonus issue on the basis of two bonus shares
for every three rights shares taken up

During the Year, the Company had raised an approximately HK$159
million, net of expense, by way of the rights issue of 337,784,800 rights
shares and 222,523,198 bonus shares to the qualifying shareholders
at a subscription price of HK$0.5 (effective subscription price HK$0.3)
per rights share on the basis of three rights share for every two existing
shares with bonus issue on the basis of two bonus shares for every three
rights shares taken up (closing price of the shares of the Company was
HK$0.435 as at the date of announcement). The Company had applied
such net proceeds from the rights issue for margin repayment to a
broker of HK$150 million. Details of the rights issue were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 4 November 2016, circular dated
21 November 2016 and prospectus dated 23 December 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s
listed shares during the Year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENT

Save as disclosed in note 30, as at 31 December 2017, the Company
made no capital expenditure or any other commitments (2016: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Year, the Company did not acquire or dispose of any
subsidiaries or associated companies (2016: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company has twenty investments as of 31 December 2017,
comprising fourteen equity securities listed in Hong Kong, one private
equity fund and five private equities. The largest one held by the
Company is in the financial services sector focusing in the Hong Kong
market.

The rest of the net proceeds gained will be applied by the Board and the
Investment Manager in making investments according to the investment
objective, policies and restrictions of the Company and the requirements
of the Articles of Association of the Company, the Listing Rules and the
investment management agreement. Any proceeds not deployed are
placed in bank deposits or invested in money market instruments or
money market funds.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had three full-time employees
(31 December 2016: three full-time employees). All of the Company’s
employees were based in Hong Kong.

The Company establishes its remuneration policy by making reference to
the prevailing market conditions and a performance-based reward system.
The policy is periodically reviewed. Apart from mandatory provident
fund, salaries increment, discretionary bonuses and share options may
be awarded to employees according to the assessment of individual
performance.

The total remuneration cost incurred by the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$1,543,790 (31 December 2016: HK$2,266,198).

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

The Board believes that foreign exchange risks are minimal as the
Company mainly uses the Hong Kong or United States dollar to carry out
its business transactions.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every eight existing shares
with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for every one rights
share taken up
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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After the reporting period, the Company has raised an approximately
HK$47.1 million, net of expenses, by way of the rights issue of
97,353,899 rights shares and 292,061,697 bonus shares to the qualifying
shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.5 (effective subscription
price HK$0.125) per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every
eight existing shares with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares
for every one rights share taken up (Closing price of the shares of the
Company was HK$0.130 as at the date of announcement of the rights
issue).

The Company is tended to apply such proceeds from the Rights Issue
for the repayment of loan in the sum of HK$35,000,000 and partial
repayment of coupon notes in the sum of HK$31,500,000.

Details of the rights issue were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 23 January 2018, circular dated 5 February 2018 and
prospectus dated 6 March 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, audit plan and relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”).

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports for year 2017 and significant issues on the
financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems, scope of work and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties. The Audit Committee also
met the external auditors once without the presence of the executive
Directors.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board hereby announces that the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 24 May 2018 to Tuesday, 29 May
2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting ("AGM"), all transfers of shares, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 23 May 2018.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gu Xu (“Mr. Gu"), aged 53, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, is responsible for the provision of leadership to the
Board and the Company’s business development and daily management
generally. Mr. Gu was appointed as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
on 28 May 2015 and has been appointed as executive Director of the
Company since 25 November 2010. Mr. Gu completed a bachelor’s
degree majoring in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics (_E/Z84E K22 in 1986. He further received a master's degree
majoring in Economics from the same university in 1989 and a master’s
degree majoring in Business Administration awarded jointly by Fudan
University (f BK2) and The University of Hong Kong in 2003. Mr. Gu
has accumulated 22 years' experience in asset management, investment
and financial management in both financial conglomerate and private
company. He is the chairman of E/8R R EEIE BB A A (Shanghai
Dongsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd.). Furthermore, Mr. Gu
has been appointed as the president of ;A F R R AR EE S EIEE
fR/2A] (Henan Zhong Yuan Lian Chuang Investment Fund Management
Company Limited) since October 2015. Mr. Gu has also been appointed as
independent supervisor of & /& B END AR A 7] (Suzhou Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd) in May 2016 and independent supervisor of Frix §iE %%
BB ER AR (02866.HK) (COSCO SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd.), a
company listed both in Hong Kong and Shanghai, in June 2016.

Profiles of Directors
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Profiles of Directors

i

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan”), aged 54, has been appointed as an
executive Director since 1 June 2013. Mr. Chan is one of the responsible
officers of China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited. Mr. Chan is currently
a licensed person to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing
in futures contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO").
Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of
Business Administration of The University of South Florida in the United
States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced in dealing in securities, fund
management, corporate management, corporate finance and managing
listed investment companies under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Since
June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment Limited (1217.
HK), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), as an executive director. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited (8220.HK), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, in August 2007, and was re-designated
as an executive director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited in April 2009.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of China Investment
and Finance Group Limited (1226.HK), an investment company listed
on the Stock Exchange, in March 2011. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of China Investment Development Limited (204.HK),
an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in May 2012 and
was appointed as an executive director of Capital VC Limited (2324.HK),
an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in November 2012.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of Alpha Returns Group
PLC, an investment company listed on AIM of London Stock Exchange,
in May 2013. On 14 February 2016, Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of China Trend Holdings Limited (8171.HK), a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. He was
an independent non-executive director of Agritrade Resources Limited
(1131.HK) from June 2010 to October 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Chun Ho ("Mr. Lam”), aged 36, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 22 October 2014. He is the
chairman of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor
degree of Business Administration in Accounting. Mr. Lam is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and he has over 11 years’ experience in the field of auditing, financial
reporting and financial management. Mr. Lam is currently a manager of
a local corporate service company. Since 24 October 2014, Mr. Lam has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Wah
Yan Healthcare Limited (648.HK), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub (“Mr. Ayoub”), aged 38, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 1 February
2014. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Ayoub holds a Master of Arts (Hons) in Economics
& Political Science from University of Edinburgh. He has over 15 years'’
experience in financial advisory and investments. Mr. Ayoub was an
executive director in global principal investments & trading division of
JP Morgan, Hong Kong. Since March 2012, he became the managing
director of Cassia Investments Limited, which is a consumer focused
investment firm specialising in lower middle-market companies across
Asia.

Profiles of Directors

EXEF

BAYFHTES

MIRREE([MSTE]) - 3658 B20145F104
L2BREZERBEIERNTESE - RRAAAA
ERZEERFTNEESERE  WAIREZEE
X8 MAEEZEERNBBREAE  £&g
o BAETIEEEEBLEN MEEAREE
FHRIAEME ARG E - EHEA - MBHE R
HERFEABBITFHER MEERKA
—RAR R RTE R ARSI - B2014510H
2488 MEERZEABRMER ETAA
PRI B EAR AT (648.HK) B JEATTE
$ o

Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub % 4 ([ Ayoub %t
£1) 385 - B2014F2 A1 R EZERSE
MIEBITEE c BAARFIRBEESEFEU
REZZEGRFIMEEGKE - AyoubsE &
REETEABHAKESNBET (KB)E
i - MR BHARKRE T EERB 15FL
5 o Ayoubst & Z BB B ER KB IRE KIE
BERRSEAITES - H2012F3 A » K
/Cassia Investments Limited® 424K » Z A
AA—FEBIREAR - BFISHE MR/ NE
M5 AT °

FETEEREBR AR / FIR 2017 21




Profiles of Directors
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Mr. Pun Tit Shan (“Mr. Pun”), aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 8 April 2016. He is a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Pun holds a master of business
administration degree (with honour) from the University of Manchester.
He has over 34 years' of experience in the finance field, such as strategic
dealing and arbitraging in the derivatives market, sales and marketing
management in the primary and secondary equity market and sales and
assets managing of high net-worth clients and investment advisory. Since
February 2018, Mr. Pun has been appointed as the Head of Investment of
Concord Asset Management (HK) Limited. In addition, Mr. Pun has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Convoy Global
Holdings Limited (1019.HK) in May 2016 and CPMC Holdings Limited
(906.HK) in September 2016, both of the companies’ shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange. Currently, he is the vice-chairman
of Institute of Financial Analyst and Professional Commentator and the
Honorary Consultant of Hong Kong Ningxia Youth Association (B/&% &

5F9).

Mr. Chong Ching Hoi (“Mr. Chong”), aged 35, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director since 22 December 2017. He
is a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chong graduated from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Accounting in November 2004. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He has more than 10 years of experience in audit, accounting, financial
reporting and compliance. Mr. Chong is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Hao Bai International (Cayman) Limited
(“HBIC"”), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (8431.HK). He has joined HBIC since March 2016 and
is responsible for its compliance and corporate governance, preparing
group’s consolidated financial statements as well as reviewing and
implementing effective financial policies and internal control procedures.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and audited
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company is an exempted limited liability company, incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 for the purpose of acting as a
closed-ended investment company.

The Company is principally engaged in investing globally in both private
and publicly listed enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of the mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 6 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”). The
Company had not commenced any operation or business before the
Listing Date.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business review as required by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including risks facing by the Company,
important events affecting the Company, that have occurred since the
end of the Year, likely future development in the Company’s business can
be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report. These discussions form part of this “Report
of the Directors”.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Company for the Year are set out in the financial
statements on pages 61 to 139.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividends for the
Year (31 December 2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Company for the
Year is set out on page 140.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in the
statement of changes in equity to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
note 24 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s
listed shares during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gu Xu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chun Ho

Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub

Mr. Pun Tit Shan

Mr. Chong Ching Hoi (appointed on 22 December 2017)

In order to comply with the requirements of the code provision A.4.2 of
the CG Code, Mr. Lam Chun Ho and Mr. Chong Ching Hoi shall retire at
the AGM. The retiring Directors are being eligible to offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are
set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 19 to 22 of
this annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of the fee or emoluments of Directors during the Year are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Company’s operations. Save the Company’s Share
Option Scheme set forth in note 23 to the financial statements, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
Year or there was not any subsisting equity-linked agreement entered
into by the Company at the end of the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Company is devoted to promoting and maintaining the environmental
and social sustainable development. As a responsible enterprise, the
Company is in compliance with all the material relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong in terms of the environmentally friendliness,
health as well as safety and adopts effective measures, conserves energy
and reduces waste.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company’s operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and
accordingly shall comply with material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with all the material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director of the
Company together with every former Director of the Company shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability, action,
proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses, including
legal expenses, whatsoever which they or any of them may incur in the
execution of their office or otherwise in relation thereto. During the Year,
appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance coverage had
been arranged in respect of legal action that might be taken against the
Directors and Officers of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation (if any).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the “Investment Management Agreement” mentioned below,
no contracts of significance, to which the Company was a party and in
which any Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save the respective Investment Management Agreement and Potential
Conflicts of Interest disclosed on pages 29 to 31 of the Report of the
Directors, the Company has not entered into any contract with any
individuals, firms or corporate entities to manage or regulate the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 1 June 2015, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 28 May 2015. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company in issue
from time to time. The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of shares in issue on 28 May 2015 unless the Company
seeks the approval of the shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing from 28 May
2015.

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board, but shall not be lower than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date on which the Board approves the making
of the offer for the grant of options (the “Date of Grant”), which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share. The time of acceptance of an offer for the grant of options
shall not be later than 21 days from the Date of Grant. Particulars to the
Company'’s Share Option Scheme are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'/OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the following person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each of the
Company (the “Shares”)

Number of

Capacity in which

Name of shareholder shares are held

shares held
(Direct Interests)

TERR Hitb AT RRG RIEE
RipzEmRRE

RN RAD 2 5a

B2017F 128318 * A TAL(EEHARF
FETBABRIN RAR R 2B 318 B ik
MDD FRFBIREE S RIS GHIF336
BERRARARATFEZECMAZ Rk

NP
wE

RERFEREE0.50E T2 EERF ([ K
BN ZHFE

Approximate %
Number of of issued
shares held share capital of

(Indirect Interests) the Company

EARAT
FERBEE FiERoEE ERITREZ
RREREHE RATERG 2 5% (E##ER) (BEER) BAEDL
Universe International Financial Interest in controlled - 132,400,000 17.00
Holdings Limited Corporation (Note 1)
BEFEESRIERAR AR SIS A E) R (PiF&ET)
Ng Wah Tung Beneficial Owner 40,000,000 - 5.13
RER EnEEA
Note: FHaE -

(1) Weluck Development Limited (“WDL"), which owns 132,400,000 Shares of the
Company, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Fragrant River Entertainment Culture
(Holdings) Limited (“FRECHL"). FRECHL is wholly owned by Universe International
Financial Holdings Limited (“UIFHL"). Therefore, UIFHL is deemed to be interested in
the 132,400,000 Shares held by WDL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company has
not been notified by any other persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares and debentures”) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the following continuing connected
transactions, details of which were disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Custodian Agreement

The Company had appointed Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch (the
“Custodian”) as custodian since 2015. The custodian agreement with
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch (the “Custodian Agreement”)
was effective and will continue to be in force until terminated by either
the Company or the Custodian by giving the other party not less than
one month advance notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement, the Company will pay the
Custodian a monthly fee of the higher of (a) the net asset value of the
Company at valuation day equal to the rate 0.02% per annum, or (b)
UsD2,500 per month.

During the Year, the total custodian fee of HK$238,308 was paid by the
Company to the custodian.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

Pursuant to the investment management agreement dated 30 December
2016 (the “Investment Management Agreement”), the Company
re-appointed China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited (the “Investment
Manager”) as its investment manager to provide the Company with
investment management services for another period of three years
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The Investment Manager
is entitled to receive from the Company a management fee accruing
monthly at the annual amount of HK$960,000 and payable monthly in
arrears from 1 January 2017 onwards.

During the Year, the management fee of HK$960,000 was paid by the
Company.

The Investment Manager is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
service provided by the Investment Manager to the Company under the
Investment Management Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ OPINION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In the opinion of the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, the terms of and the transactions
contemplated under the Investment Management Agreement and
the Custodian Agreement have been entered into after arm’s length
negotiation, on normal commercial terms, and in the ordinary course of
business of the Company, and are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Company’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Company in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Currently the Investment Manager and their directors, officers and
employees provide management and advisory services to a number of
hedge funds, mutual funds and managed discretionary accounts with
similar investment objectives to the Company.

From time to time conflicts of interest may arise between the interest
of the Company and those of other clients. In such situations, the
Investment Manager will have regard to its obligations to the Company
to act in the best interests of the Company, so far as is practicable having
regard also to its obligations to the other clients.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee is a Director of the Company and the Investment
Manager and is involved in the day-to-day operations of each of these
entities. This may give rise to conflicts of interest.
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As the overall interests of the Company and Investment Manager are
aligned, the Directors are of the view that Mr. Chan will be able to act
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. In addition,
all major decisions of each of these companies will be made by their
respective Board of Directors of these companies as a whole and not at
the sole discretion of Mr. Chan. In the case of the Company, this includes
the independent non-executive Directors and the executive Director, Mr.
Gu Xu.

Mr. Chan will maintain confidentiality in respect of the information of
each of the funds managed by the Investment Manager. They are also
aware of their obligations under the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong's Internal Control Guidelines that they are required to
establish and ensure the integrity and security of all information relevant
to the business operations of the respective entities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the shares of
the Company under the articles of association of the Company although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 33 to 44,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the
Year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after 31 December 2017 are set out
in note 32 to the finance statements.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had three full-time employees,
two executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.
Details of the fees or emoluments of Directors in respect of their services
rendered to the Company and staff cost during the Year are set out in
note 8 and note 9 respectively to the financial statements. The Company
has adopted the Share Option Scheme to eligible participants. Details of
the plan are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

On behalf of the Board

Gu Xu
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of the Company has committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that a good corporate
governance standard will provide a framework for the Company to
formulate its business strategies and policies, and manage the associated
risks through effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance
the transparency and accountability of the Company to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and creditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view
that throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company was
in compliance with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, save
and except for the deviation from code provisions A.2.1. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as the details
of the deviation are summarised in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” on page 36.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six members,
two of which are executive Directors, namely Mr. Gu Xu, who is the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Mr. Chan
Cheong Yee. The other four members are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Chun Ho, Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub, Mr.
Pun Tit Shan and Mr. Chong Ching Hoi. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board. The biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 19 to 22 of
this annual report.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017.
The Board is responsible, inter alia, for establishing the investment
objective and policies of the Company, complying with the Company’s
investment restrictions, for monitoring the Company’s performance and
for the appointing, supervising, directing and, if necessary, removing any
of the Company'’s service providers, including the Investment Manager.

Current composition of the Board, including names of the independent
non-executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications to
shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information and
accounts of the Company. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of
the Company. The Company will, upon request, provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Company'’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Company’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place. All Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The independent
non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard
of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the
Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions
and operations.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.
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A summary of training received by Directors during the year ended
31 December 2017 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:

Name of Directors

RIS EAIRM 25088 B E20175F12A31H
IHFE  ESCESHEISnT

Seminar and training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development
and other relevant topics

BEREEEE  BEERER

EEng HAAEE =B E R IEI
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Gu Xu BEMRSEAE 4
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee PREZETE 4
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Lam Chun Ho MRZ L& v
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub %t 4 v
Mr. Pun Tit Shan E R 4
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi HESEAE

(appointed on 22 December 2017) (FR2017F12 A22 HEEAT) v

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the Year, Mr. Gu Xu had been the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He provided leadership to the
Board and is responsible for the Company’s business development and
daily management generally. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same individual can
provide the Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows
for effective and efficient planning and implementation of business
decisions and strategies. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board which
comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals, with four of them
being independent non-executive Directors.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board has at all times complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to having a minimum of three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third
of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference which
deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are available to the shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All members of each Board committee are independent non-executive
Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” on
pages 2 to 4 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, audit plan and relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in CG Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports for year 2017 and significant issues on the
financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems, scope of work and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of the executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; (ii) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration package of the Directors and
senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Directors from time to time. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms than those set out
in the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company and the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and other related matters. The Remuneration Committee also
made recommendations to the Board on the terms of service agreement
of the new independent non-executive Director appointed during the
Year.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on the proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 27 March 2014. In
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Company's Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee shall also discuss and make
recommendations to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee considered an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications of
the retiring Directors standing for election at the AGM and to consider
and recommend to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Chong Ching
Hoi as independent non-executive Director. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board had
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code
and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed
for a specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the
current term.

The circular to shareholders of the Company with notice of the AGM
contains biographical details of all the Directors proposed to be re-elected
at the meeting to enable shareholders of the Company to make an
informed decision on re-election of Directors.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AT
MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the table below:

EEHESEBER

BEEHEANNTREE2017F12 831814

ERTHNEFTEREMBES

RRENBERENTE

Meeting attended/held
HESERY ETEERY

ZEEERUAMK

Annual/
Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meetings
RRBE/
EZg EBNZBE §MEEE REZEE KEXE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Gu Xu BeEE 4/5 - - - 17
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BRERLAE 5/5 - - - 1/1
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lam Chun Ho MRE L& 5/5 22 22 20 1N
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris lbrahim Taha Ayoub%t4 3/5 0/2 172 12 01
Mr. Pun Tit Shan VAEE e 5/5 22 22 212 0N
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi' HEslEAE 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Note: BRE -
1. Mr. Chong Ching Hoi was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, 1. B ER2017F 12 A2 B EZ AR R REL

a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company on 22 December 2017. The Board had not held any Board
Meeting, Audit Committee Meeting, Remuneration Committee Meeting, Nomination
Committee Meeting and annual/extraordinary general meeting after his appointment.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent

non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend

general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of

shareholders. Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub and Mr. Pun Tit Shan were
unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 29 May 2017 due
to various work commitments.
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for each financial year and to present the interim results, annual financial
statements, and related announcements to shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 54 to 60.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company'’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are in place both
at the Company and the Investment Manager level. The Investment
Manager has in place a comprehensive risk management and internal
control policy which includes procedures requiring regular performance
of various risk analytics on the Company’s portfolio and close monitoring
of the portfolio against the Company’s investment objective, policies and
restrictions.

Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

RAEE  BRERBRTEFEEHN  TFEN
ERBHITESHENBN FEBTIFNTE

EREH -

ESHMBHRREAAENERE

EEHRRSEETRBEERMEREE R
FERAURPIZ BHER TSV RFERELA
BEERAFHRRAR A FEBHARRZ B R
o URABR2HRD XS - 2FUBHRR
KRR o

EXWPNEFEMEEXNTHAREMER
EHHBERATHARARFELE 2B NBKRE
REER -

ARREZHENEAEEMERRABHEH
WEENER - HERFES54E60HHBLZHK
AR o

EkEE R AR

EHEERZEENRREERABERE
DR ERR Y BT - REHENEEEE
MG ReER R BB Al - MARE
RTEBEALERLSRALELARMIER
R o

EZe2RARNEREEAAREREA
BEREEARZAREERIEE YR MM
FEEMAM Bk EE R AREIEHE -

ARRIRBEEEABAORERREERA
MEEHE - REBEEACRHEGRARRER
RAREERR  EPEEREEMETSZH
BRARRIREMAG AR TR RIEAR

AMKRERR BRERHIZNERKEAR
Ao

FETEEREBR AR / FIR 2017 41




Corporate Governance Report
ERERRE

At the Company level, a risk committee which is consisting of Mr. Chan
Cheong Yee, an executive Director, and Mr. Lam Chun Ho, an independent
non-executive Director, is responsible for monitoring the operational
and portfolio risks to the Company and monitoring the Investment
Manager including reviewing whether the investment objectives, policies
and restrictions are being followed by the Investment Manager. In case
of any deviation, the risk committee will discuss deviations with the
Investment Manager immediately and monitor remedial action. For all
material deviations, the risk committee will formulate recommendations
to the Board on the appropriate remedial actions to be made. The risk
committee meets on a monthly basis, or more regularly if a meeting is
requested by any risk committee member.

The Board, as supported by the risk committee, the Audit Committee
as well as the management report, reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems, including the financial, operational and
compliance controls, for the Year, and considered that such systems are
effective and adequate. The annual review also covered the financial
reporting and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
Year is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in
this annual report.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s
independent auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, for services
rendered in respect of audit services is HK$850,000.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convening extraordinary general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2013
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow Article 25.3 of
the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to Article 25.3 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any members of the Company
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than ten per cent in the Net Asset Value of the shares
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to
be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months after the 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to them by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down in Article 34.3 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing
of the intention to propose such person for election as a Director, signed
by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for election as
a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company. The minimum length of the period during which
such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and the period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or request to the Company, for
the attention of Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2706 9544, or mail to
Suite 902, 9/F, Ovest, 77 Wing Lok Street, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings or other general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee will make
themselves available at the annual general meeting to meet with the
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinaneweconomyfund.com, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

44 China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2017

MESSFHES

RRAKEEMEAXREREFRAEESR
(852) 2706 9544 » KA T EH B KEHTTH
Ovest 9MEI02E - BXML AR A (GERA A AIE
BN o

BERRBE

ARARA - BRRBWEBEEREER
BRI EEERA R AR RE MR
F o ARABNRIFEBRR 2B 2 HELFE
LERBBEBERBFRGHEMBRAENT
X -EFGIRUNEREZES FHZEE
URBRAZEEREEHFERRBFARE
PRSI O EREFNAR -

BIREBXRER  XRQAKEBHE
www.chinaneweconomyfund.com T & & %7
BHEARRVBEER bEERBHAREME
BRERH - HARER] -

R
RAFE  ARRL AR ERAMRE

AIfE R EERR - AR RBBEIRAM N AR
ZBRFTRAN AT A AN A BB A A ut (B B



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the "ESG Report”)
summarises the initiatives, programmes and performance of the
Company, as well as demonstrates its commitment to sustainability. In
respect of the information concerning “Corporate Governance”, please
refer to the relevant parts of the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s principle activity was the investment trading in both
private and public enterprises. This ESG Report covers these business
operations in the management office in Hong Kong during the Year.

The Board of the Company recognises the importance of strong
Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG") performance in
meeting the changing expectations of stakeholders and enhancing
the performance of the Company. The Board has taken the overall
responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy and reporting, and has a
far-reaching commitment to environmental protection with the mission to
promote the environmental culture among all employees to maintain the
sustainability of the Company.

With the aim to strengthening its ESG disclosure requirements, the
Company has taken the initiatives to formulate policies, measure relevant
data, monitor the progress and report to investors and other stakeholders
on its achievement, in accordance to the ESG Guide (Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules) of the Stock Exchange and other related rules.

The Company values its stakeholders and their views relating to its
businesses and environmental, social and governance issues. In order
to understand and address stakeholders’ concerns, the Company
communicates with its key stakeholders, including but not limited to
employees, investors, customers, suppliers, government bodies and
communities through different channels such as conferences, electronic
platforms and public events. In formulating operational strategies and
environmental, social and governance measures, the Company takes
into account the stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve its
performance through mutual cooperation with the stakeholders, resulting
in creating greater value for the community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUBJECT AREA

Aspect A1: Emissions

The Company has been persistent in conducting business in an
environmentally responsible manner and has been the Company’s
mission to reduce possible environmental impact from its
operations, tackle climate change and to reduce risks for the society
in the most effective way.

The Company is principally engaged in investment trading. The
business activities of the Company do not involve in any industrial
process nor use any motor vehicle. Hence, there had been no direct
emission relating to air pollutants and greenhouse gases (“GHG"),
no discharges into water and land, and no generation of hazardous
waste during the Year.

A small amount of GHG were emitted indirectly during the Year
from the consumption of electricity in the office, which was
supplied by power station generated from natural gas, coal and
other petroleum products where GHG were directly emitted.

A small amount of waste was produced primarily from the disposal
of paper, and office supplies, which were non-hazardous.

Nonetheless in the effort to address environmental responsibilities,
the Company has implemented energy-saving measures to further
reduce these indirect emissions as described in the later section
headed “Use of Resources”, as well as waste reduction measures
as described in the section headed "“Environment and Natural
Resources”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Greenhouse gases (GHG)

Scope 1 — Direct emissions from operations that are owned or
controlled by the Company, such as the use of motor
vehicle, etc;

Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions resulting from purchased
electricity consumed by the Company;

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions that occur outside the

Company, including both upstream and downstream
emissions, such as methane gas generation at landfill
due to disposal of paper waste, GHG emissions due to
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage
by government departments and business air travel by
employees.

A detail summary of the GHG emission is shown below:
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Total Total
GHG emissions Major sources GHG emissions GHG emissions
(tonnes) (%)
BERBIER BERBIR
BERBIER FERIR HE BE
(M) (%)
Scope 1
SRS
Direct emissions Nil - -
BHEHW kL
Scope 2
gii52
Energy indirect emissions Electricity 5.29 100
BE TR A1 EE HE A S
Scope 3
il
Other indirect emissions Disposal of paper - -
HAth Fe 2 HE A ERRER
Total GHG emissions AERBHEREE 5.29 100

The Company generates no scope 1 emissions and an insignificant

amount of scope 3 emissions during the Year. 5.29 tonnes of

scope 2 emissions was generated during the Year, with a monthly

average discharge of 0.44 tonnes. The emission has been consistent

since there has been no change in the pattern of the Company’s

electricity usage, except during the period of overlaps of tenancy

which is higher due to relocation of offices.
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During the Year, the Company has complied with relevant
environmental laws and regulations, including Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

The Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that has an impact relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Company
during the Year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations had been reported during the Year.

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

As detailed in the section headed “Emissions”, electricity
consumption was a major source of indirect GHG emission during
the Year. The consumption of electricity was similar to that in the
previous year.

Electricity consumption

During the Year, the Company has consumed 6,690 kWh of
electricity with a monthly average usage of 558 kWh. There has
been no change in the pattern of the Company’s electricity usage
except during the period of overlaps of tenancy which is higher
due to relocation of offices. Other months remained steady with an
average consumption of 492 kWh.

Water consumption

The Company consumes water in the office from a centralised
water and sanitation system implemented in the building. The cost
of water consumption of the Company is inclusive in the monthly
rent, and the building management does not individually measure
the water consumption of each tenant and hence no relevant data
can be collected.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company has always put great emphasis on energy and
resources conservation. It has engaged in environmental-friendly
measures in the workplace in the effort to lower energy
consumption. For example, staff is encouraged to use video/
telephone conferencing system to reduce business travel and
take public transportation wherever possible to avoid lower
environmental impact from the burning of fossil fuel. The Company
has also implemented energy and water saving practices, such as
maintaining workplace temperature at a comfortably low level with
reference to the relevant standard recommended by the Electrical
& Mechanical Services Department ("EMSD"”) of the Hong Kong
Government to reduce energy use.

Aspect A3: Environment and Natural Resources

The Company also advocates environmental protection through
actively adopting waste reduction measures in office.

For example, employees of the Company are reminded to minimise
their impact on the environment and the use of natural resources
when conducting business.

Moreover, waste reduction measures include monitoring and
recording paper usage on a monthly basis, and promoting the use
of recycled paper and print double-sided wherever possible. These
measures were effectively implemented as seen from the reduction
in paper consumptions during the Year.

The Company’s efficient use of resources and waste reduction
initiatives and guidelines are stipulated in the Staff Handbook to
promote support from staff.

The Company’s operations are not directly involved in the use of
natural resources. The impact on the environment and natural
resources from the Company’s operations was minimal during the
Year.
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SOCIAL SUBJECT AREA

Aspect B1: Employment

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Company. The Company values its employees
and is committed to providing a fair and equitable workplace
environment for all employees, and ensures that they are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company has incorporated guidelines into the Staff Handbook,
covering the legal aspects of employment, including working hours,
rest periods, salary and welfare, code of conduct, and anti-bribery.
Employment policies in the Staff Handbook have been reviewed
and regularly updated.

The Company has fully complied with the Employment Ordinance,
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487), the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527) and the Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602). The Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that has
an impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare during
the Year.

The number of employees had gradually increased from 2 at the
beginning of the Year to 4 at the end of the Year; 3 staff work as
full-time, 1 as part-time. There was no staff turnover during the
Year.

During the Year, most of 75% of the staff in the Company were
aged between 31 and 50, while 1 employee was under the age of
30, constituting the remaining 25% of the workforce. No employee
was over the age of 50.

Regarding the distribution of gender, the ratio has changed from
an equal number between male and female to the majority 75% of
male employees. There is only 1 female employee in the Company,
while the number of male staff had gradually increased.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The number of staff positioned in senior has steadily increased from
1 to 3, constituting 75% of the total workforce at the end of the
Year; while the number of staff in management role has stayed the
same at 1, constituting 25% of the total workforce at the end of
the Year.

The Company is based in Hong Kong and does not offshore to
foreign countries. All of its employees work at the Hong Kong
office.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment for all of its employees, protecting them from any
potential occupational hazards.

The Company employees are mainly office-based, performing
routine office work, and thus safety issues are not as pertinent to
the job nature.

The Company also offers coverage on medical insurance (including
in-patient and out-patient) and compensation to employees in the
matter of work-related injury.

During the Year, the Company complied with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509) in Hong Kong.

Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Company attaches the great importance to the staff
development and quality of employee. The Company has offered
training opportunities from external organisations, and offers
flexible training time to facilitate staff to reinforce skill sets and to
keep up-to-date with the latest knowledge in their profession.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Company is committed to comply with all applicable labour
laws and regulations on employment in Hong Kong.

The Company respects human rights and treats this factor seriously
when making investment in human capital by applying a very
comprehensive screening process for recruiting employees with
good quality.

Staff work schedules are set up fairly to keep within standard
work hours and the staff members are entitled to annual leave,
sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, examination leave and
compassionate leave.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

The Company principally engaged in investment trading, and
hence unlike manufacturing industry there are relatively fewer
suppliers and a less complicated supply chain. Our main suppliers
are only involved in third-party service providers such as information
technology service, property management service, advertising
service, legal and consulting service, office equipment, and printing
and stationery suppliers.

All of our suppliers are based in Hong Kong and they comply
with the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The potential risk in
environmental and labour impacts in our supplier chain is relatively
low and hence we tend to focus on service quality when it comes
to selection of suppliers.

The Company has maintained good practices to build up positive
relationships with its suppliers engaged in cleaning services
and consumables. The Company purchases office supplies and
equipment from the list of approved suppliers that have been
awarded for their quality of goods and services through the
selection process.

During the Year, the Company has purchased different types of
supplies from 4 separate suppliers on a monthly basis, including
cleaning services, water, printer and office supplies such as
stationary. All suppliers were located in Hong Kong.

52

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2017

B4LH : HTHEE

RRRBOHBTEBREBABENMEE
RS AP SOER ©

RRARBEAE YH+ODEREHES
| BRPAEREANEARTE @ HFA3E
FERENMERIERRESREET -

BERTEE T TIERREREK - UBRERITE
BEETE BTHAERZEFR K
R ER ER ZABRLER-

BSAH : HEHEEE

ARBEBUREREES  BRHRRE
X RMEAnHERAYRYD  HE
BEREE - BANEZZHERESR
ST RGHEER - WERBRS
WMEREERY - BERS  EAENEH
RIS~ MRERE - EIRI RS AHER -

B HERAERSURNEE  MKF
BT EBERBERD - RN HERE
o RERS TR ENELERRESR
K- Bt - RAEREHERKERSE
ERRBER -

ARAR—HRFREMNED - BEKE
78R B %5 BB FE an ) (R FE P 2 3L R AP Y
R - AAFNKLBHE UEER R
REEEEN  IRAINHEETRE
FNEECISE SR

RAFE - ARREARMEELHER
RETRARENAM  BRFEBFRRY
K- EREEXASHAERR - HE
AN EE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

The Company is principally engaged in investment trading, and
hence the Company does not deliver a product or service. When
transacting with third-party, and when dealing with member share
registration matters, the Company complied with relevant laws and
regulations regarding data protection and privacy. Any unauthorised
copying, dissemination or disclosure of confidential information,
including identities and records of transactions of registered
members, are strictly prohibited. During the Year, the Company has
not received any significant complaint from any stakeholder.

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Company adheres to the highest ethical standards and
maintains a corporate culture of integrity and justice to prevent,
detect and report all types of fraud, including corruption. Employees
at all levels are expected to conduct in an appropriate manner, with
integrity, impartiality and honesty. All staff members are to comply
with provisions included in the Staff Handbook.

The Company seeks to encourage strict policies that prohibit bribery
and other improper payments to public officials. The Company
has complied with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance
(Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws
in regions in which the Company invests. The Company was not
aware of any significant matter related to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering during the Year.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Company invests in the community by making significant
contributions. One such investment was the sponsorship to youth
development initiatives events, the International Youth Swimming
Tournament. The Company also encourages employees to
participate in various local community activities and events on a
voluntary basis.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

To the shareholders of China New Economy Fund Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China New Economy
Fund Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 61 to 139, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (”IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board (“IAASB”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Carrying amount of listed investments

The Company’s listed investments comprised approximately 36% of total
Company assets (by value) as at 31 December 2017 and were significant
to the Company’s capital and financial performance. Due to their
materiality, they are one of the areas which had the greatest effect on
our overall audit strategy.

Our procedures over the existence, valuation and completeness of the
Company’s portfolio of listed investments included:

° Assessing the processes in place to record investment transactions
and to value the portfolio;

o Agreeing the pricing of all the listed investments to externally
quoted prices; and

o Obtaining from independent third party custodian confirmations on
all the listed investments.
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Carrying amount of suspended listed investments

The investment portfolio of the Company as at 31 December 2017 also
included investments in suspended listed investments, which do not have
an active market.

We focused on this area because of the significance of these investments
in the financial statements, and because determining the valuation
methodology and the inputs involved high degree of estimation
uncertainty and required significant judgement to be applied by the
investment manager and the board of directors.

Our procedures over the existence and valuation of the Company’s
portfolio of suspended listed investments included:

o Assessing the valuation methodologies applied for appropriateness
against accepted market practice;

o Assessing the assumptions made in determining the valuation of
these investments by considering factors which may impact their
fair values, including the duration of suspension period, the relevant
market information and news of the suspended listed equities, the
price movement of comparable listed equities or index during the
suspension period,;

o Comparing the assumptions used in the Company’s models and
methodologies to independent external sources where possible;

° Involving our valuation experts to assist in assessing these inputs
where the valuation inputs were unobservable; and

o Evaluating the adequacy of financial statement disclosures.

Carrying amount of unlisted investments

The investment portfolio includes investments in private equity funds and
direct private equity investments, all of which are unlisted and unquoted.

We focused on this area because of the significance of these investments
in the financial statements, and because determining the valuation
methodology and the inputs involved estimation uncertainty and required
significant judgement to be applied by the investment manager and the
board of directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
RV A TR

Our procedures over the existence and valuation of the Company’s
portfolio of unlisted investments included:

Assessing the design and operating effectiveness of the financial reporting
controls we considered significant in the valuations and model approval
process;

Assessing the valuation methodologies applied for appropriateness
against accepted market practice;

Considering whether the application of methodologies is consistent with
generally accepted valuation methodologies and prior periods;

Comparing the assumptions used in the Company’s models and
methodologies to independent external sources where possible;

Involving our valuation experts to assist in assessing these inputs where
valuation inputs were unobservable;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as latest financial
information/statements approved by independent auditors;

Comparing the recent transaction price with the valuation basis provided
by management; and

Evaluating the adequacy of financial statement disclosures.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

K E At 2 E W R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z£20175F12 A31H LLFE

[ = AN

S 7m

2017 2016
20174 20164
Note HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
REVENUE KA 5 821,073 2,470,078
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets at XA EB@IBFIERZ £ &
fair value through profit or loss KEr (B18),/WisFE 6 (472,963,362) 87,644,293
Other operating expenses EfeEAY (13,713,844) (17,067,148)
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT EE(EE)BR (485,856,133) 73,047,223
Finance costs BARSAK AR 7(a) (23,520,463) (16,006,085)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BT (EE),H5R 7(b) (509,376,596) 57,041,138
Income tax expense FriS i 12 (1,361,062) (9,167,538)
(LOSS)/PROFIT AND TOTAL AAAEBEEREEAEN
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ ER(BR),BIR
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2 (ER),WEEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (510,737,658) 47,873,600
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE AATREEEREEAEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SR(EE), BRI
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 13
— Basic (restated for 2016) —HEARQ016F&ES) (0.68) 0.09
— Diluted (restated for 2016) — B (2016 K ET) (0.68) 0.09
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Statement of Financial Position

ISR R

At 31 December 2017 72017412 H31H

2017 2016
20174 20164
Note HK$ HK$
B BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Deferred tax assets FEREFIBE B 22 = 1,361,062
Deposits b 14 568,162 522,206
Total non-current assets IEMBEERE 568,162 1,883,268
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables fﬁiﬁw)\lﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁguﬁlm 14 410,943 371,230
Amount due from brokers RIS 48 A TR 14 5,732,651 13
Financial assets at fair value BAF BB TﬁﬁnﬁlJﬁEZ
through profit or loss SRIEE 15 182,231,485 700,199,558
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁi MIReEE 17 3,653,633 13,824,284
Total current assets MEEELE 192,028,712 714,395,085
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals Eﬁﬂﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ*%ﬁ 18 1,714,058 1,913,826
Amount due to brokers R A& 40 AR 19 5,646,820 169,125,134
Amount due to a related company  JEf—fH BBE A FIH0E 20 80,000 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings EREFRR F“& 21 66,976,320 8,000,000
Total current liabilities mEaERE 74,417,198 179,118,960
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 117,611,514 535,276,125
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEZERRBEE
LIABILITIES 118,179,676 537,159,393
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Borrowings BE 21 - 69,285,628
Net assets BEFE 118,179,676 467,873,765
EQUITY =
Issued capital BRI TR 24 389,415,599 111,261,600
Reserves {1 (271,235,923) 356,612,165
Total equity HewmiBE 118,179,676 467,873,765
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE BREEFE 0.15 2.10

Gu Xu
==
Director

EZE
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Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
BESS T E

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 B L& &

Share
Issued Share Option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
BRITRA R4 RE BRERE T HR @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 24)
(WizE24) (FizE24) (Fi7E24)
At 1 January 2016 #2016F1A1H 61,812,000 326,516,058 3,258,000 (66,902,997) 324,683,061
Shares issued during the year FREETRG 49,449,600 49,140,540 - - 98,590,140
Share issue expenses WA TH - (3,273,036) - - (3,273,036)
Release upon lapse of equity-settled  BAEZAEE HRIA TR
share-based payment K - - (3,258,000) 3,258,000 -
Total comprehensive income FAZENEEE
for the year - - - 47 873,600 47,873,600
At 31 December 2016 016F12A318 %
and at 1 January 2017 2017F1A1H 111,261,600 372,383,562* - (15,771,397)* 467,873,765
Shares issued during the Year FREETRG 278,153,999  (111,261,599) - - 166,892,400
Share issue expenses BT Y = (5,848,831) = = (5,848,831)
Total comprehensive expense FAZHEREE
for the Year - - - (510,737,658) (510,737,658)
At 31 December 2017 017F12A318 389,415,599 255,273,132* - (526,509,055)* 118,179,676
* These reserve accounts comprise the negative reserve of HK$271,235,923 (2016: * ZEREEEREVEMRARANEBERE
reserve of HK$356,612,165) in the statement of financial position. 271,235,9237%7t(2016%F : [1#356,612,165/87T) ©
FERIFEEIREBR AR/ F5R 2017 63




Statement of Cash Flows
WEMER
Year ended 31 December 2017 %2017 12 A31H L F &

2017 2016
20174 20164
Note HK$ HK$
MIsE BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING H®ETEBFEBHERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT(EHE),Sm T (509,376,596) 57,041,138
Adjustments for: BLLATIER % :
Finance costs IR In%N 23,520,463 16,006,085
Dividend income from listed EERFEFREWA
equity securities 5 (357,014) (1,395,388)
Dividend income from private FLE A HERR B A
equity 5 = (1,074,443)
Bank interest income HRITHABHWA 5 (320) (247)
Interest earned from bond BEHEH B (432,739) -
Net realised loss on financial assets ~ ZAF(EIBEBIEZYIRZ SR
at fair value through profit or loss BECEBEEEFE 6 291,987,125 2,811,973
Net unrealised loss/(gain) on financial & AF(EFEEEZSE 2 SR
assets at fair value through profit BEABEERE (W)
or loss FE 6 180,976,237 (90,456,266)
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 E51RF 5 20,561 -
(13,662,283) (17,067,148)
Payments for purchase of BERATEERERIE S
financial assets at fair value BhE B 2 (S 5K
through profit or loss (903,830,718) (867,234,947)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HEZE A ERBERTIRZE
at fair value through W& EFTSRIA
profit or loss 943,711,555 558,245,740
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, e~ TR FRIB R E M EREIE
prepayments and other receivables (&A1) /54 (85,669) 14,037
(Increase)/decrease in amount FEUREE 48 AFRIB(3E) R
due from brokers (306,205) 14,556,722
(Decrease)/Increase in amount el 42 AFRIB ORI,/ #n
due to brokers (163,801,434) 151,906,907
(Decrease)/Increase in other Hib A RIBRIERTER
payables and accruals CRd),/ & (199,768) 1,253,198
Cash used in operations LEEBAAL® (138,174,522) (158,325,491)
Dividend income received from B EmERESFREMA
listed equity securities 357,014 1,395,388
Dividend income received from BUFLE R B U
private equity - 1,074,443
Interest received BYFIE 433,059 247
Net cash flows used in operating LERPACEEREFE
activities (137,384,449) (155,855,413)
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Statement of Cash Flows
WEMER
Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 B L& &

2017 2016
20174 20164
Note HK$ HK$
M5 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REZFEFE2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT M P FIE 166,892,400 98,590,140
Share issue expenses AR1D BT (5,848,831) (3.273,036)
Interest paid ERFE (23,520,463) (15,025,857)
Proceeds from borrowings BB 2SR 29 35,000,000 76,305,400
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 29 (45,309,308) -
Net cash flows generated from BE RS CHEEREFE
financing activities 127,213,798 156,596,647
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERBALEECAD) B
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HE (10,170,651) 741,234
Cash and cash equivalents at FReMReEE
beginning of Year 13,824,284 13,083,050
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FXBERBESZE
AT END OF YEAR 3,653,633 13,824,284
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRBEESEEHRON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
— Cash at bank —iR1TIR e 17 3,653,633 13,824,284
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Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

2.1

CORPORATION INFORMATION

China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability. The Company was established for the purpose
of acting as a closed-ended investment company.

The Company’s registered office is at P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
at Suite 902, 9/F, Ovest, 77 Wing Lok Street, Hong Kong.

The principal investment objective of the Company is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation through globally investing in both
private and public enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan.

During the Year, the Company’s investment activities are managed
by China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited (the “Investment
Manager”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair values. The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation
of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016, except for the adoption of the new
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current year are
as described below:

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Amendments to IFRS 12 Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the new and amended IFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these financial
statements.

2.2 B BEREEENR
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Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 ERMEERERVERRT B
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING & ZE A
STANDARDS
The Company has not early applied the following new or amended ARAWARIEFEAUATEEMERK
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. ER 2R SUAEEE] 2 BIRR B 7 iR 4
U
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ RS ERELERES SBpIA
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB EBIREERE155 ARPANELR
Customers' /N
IFRS 16 Leases? BRI RREEAF 165 HE
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® RS BERSENE17R RESE
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of ERMEREEAEN  URHBEENEER
Share-based Payment Transactions' Z1BE] S BERGE!
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments BIRIBmELERER  ERERE TGRSR
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts' 23] FoWem T AHE
BRE R G AER S4
FRBAR
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative ERHEREEANENE ARABENRNES
Compensation? Z1BE] iSid
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets RS EREENE10% NREFREHENF
and IAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its LR e ERE8%  SASE BT
Associate or Joint Venture? ZIBEI(201%F) EYFAEBE
Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from BB SRS ENE1SS BEREUBREER
Contracts with Customers! paCH] FISRERPEH
EARKBA
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and B et ERE28R 2B RBERARGELE
Joint Ventures? B 2 RHER?
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’ BB &R 5405 BRIENE
ZIERT
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs BERMBERE A EB] BB BRELEL)
2014-2016 Cycle! 2014F 20165
BEMEE LT
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs BERMBEREEA B BB BRELEL)
2015-2017 Cycle? 2015F £20175F
BERMEE T2
IFRIC-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and ERMEREAEEEE IMERFHREARE
Advance Consideration’ —RBE2%
IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax ERMBEREAREES MEHEETRE!L
Treatments? —RRBE23

7201841 818 sk 14 FLAH) G B £
2019 1 A1 B3k 2 & FIAR G Z HAfE A3
19 2 78 T 56 A A 2 B B AT (B A

7202141 818 sk & FA R B £ X

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Company is described as follows.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9
brings together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application
permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is
required but providing comparative information is not compulsory.
For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied
prospectively, with some limited exceptions. The Company plans
to adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will
not restate comparative information. During 2017, the Company
has performed a detailed impact assessment of all three aspects of
IFRS 9. This assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes arising from further reasonable and
supportable information being made available to the Company in
2018 when the Company will adopt IFRS 9. Overall, the Company
expects no significant impact on its statement of financial position
and equity except for the effect of applying the impairment
requirements of IFRS 9.

The Company does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 to have
a significant impact on the classification and measurement of its
financial assets. It is expected to continue measuring at amortised
cost all financial assets currently held at amortised costs. It expects
to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets currently
held at fair value. Equity investments held as available for sale will
be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as
the investments are intended to be held for the foreseeable future
and the Company expects to apply the option to present fair value
changes in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded
in other comprehensive income for the equity investments cannot
be recycled to profit or loss when the investments are derecognised.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
that are not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss under
IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected credit loss model
either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis.

The Company does not expect the adoption of IFRS 15 will have
a significant impact on the Company’s financial performance
and financial position. However, the presentation and disclosure
requirements in IFRS 15 are more detailed than those under
the current IAS 18. The presentation requirements represent a
significant change from current practice and will significantly
increase the volume of disclosures required in the Company’s
financial statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in IFRS 15
are new and the Company has assessed that the impact of some of
these disclosure requirements will be significant.

The Company expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption
and is considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the
practical expedients available and which transition approach and
reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements, at 31 December 2017, the Company had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in aggregate of approximately HK$671,000. Upon adoption of
IFRS 16, the amounts included therein may need to be recognised
as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis,
however, will be needed to determine the amount of new rights of
use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not
limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and
short term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and
new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Except as described above the Company anticipates that the
application of other new and amended standards will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Company.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its equity investments and debt securities
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHEERME (F)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued) ANEEFE(E)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed FIERBEHREANARFEFEXEE

in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value WEERBBYUHATEFEER

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that EENHEKFEGABLSERIZAFE

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: BRDFELT -

Level 1 based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets B NAHEBEESAERER
for identical assets or liabilities TSR ME(REFAE) RE

e

Level 2 based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level FH EARABAREXRKEHAEER
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is EdEEAAEHREE B
observable, either directly or indirectly HATEA=EBEERNMEE

Al

Level 3 based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level BE=H ERFEAEBRAETIEHEA
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is HATEFEBEANMGE
unobservable Bl

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial IR EEEEERPBERMEERNE

statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether ERBEMS @ AAAREmEHRRA

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by BEMHERN(REBEEATFETE2EE

reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is MEBEANZEKEHABEESS

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of B EREEFEY -

each reporting period.

Financial instruments S@MIA

(a) Classification (a) ##F
The Company classifies its financial assets and financial RARREBEBER e ERIE39R S
liabilities into the following categories in accordance with BMITE: BREFEHHEREE
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. HemMBE I BA TS -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEGSHBERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SETE(E)
(a) Classification (Continued) (a) H#EHE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit () EHERFEBBERIEZE
or loss BEELKEE

The category of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through the profit or loss is sub-divided into:

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading:

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling and/or
repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
equity securities. These assets are acquired principally
for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term
fluctuation in price. Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term. All derivatives and liabilities
from short sales of financial instruments are classified as
held for trading. The Company’s policy is not to apply
hedge accounting.

Financial instruments designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in
this category are those that have been designated by
management on initial recognition. Management may
only designate an instrument at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition when the following
criteria are met, and designation is determined on an
instrument by instrument basis:

J The designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHBERMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued) AV EFE(E)
(a) Classification (Continued) (a) H#EHE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit () EHERFEBBERIEZE
or loss (Continued) BEEREEE)
Financial instruments designated as at fair value through MR ERBEEEEBERER
profit or loss upon initial recognition: (Continued) FEBRBERIEZEMI
B (8)

e The assets and liabilities are part of a group of s HREBERBEBEARRE
financial assets, financial liabilities or both which R SR TE RO LB B HR Bk
are managed and their performance evaluated RERBIRAFEEE
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a B R EREBEN—E
documented risk management or investment TREE eRAFEN
strategy. & —&D o

e The financial instrument contains one or more e  BAE—HEHEZERAR
embedded derivatives which significantly modify PTHEIAMSRMIAR
the cash flows that otherwise would be required BIEFI AN S ERED
by the contract. WEME °

(i) Loans and receivables (i) EREWKFTTE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets BERkEWIES BEEB

with fixed or determinable payments that are not EX A E N R EEAIELT

quoted in an active market. The Company includes in STESREE  WERK

this category amounts relating to short-term receivables. ERBHTBPLERE - A

REGFAMERN ZEBE
A2 H e W OR

(i) Other financial liabilities (i) HzmEaE
Initial recognition and measurement MR NG E
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, TRIBER VR ERRIZE
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, RERGEAEATERA
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated BalmemaE ExkfE
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as B SEREERE NEH
appropriate. ¥R TEMPTETA o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHEERME (F)
POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued) ANEEFE(E)
(a) Classification (Continued) (a) H#EHE)
(i) Other financial liabilities (Continued) (i) EzmEEE)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued) T ERMTE(E)
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value FrEerBENRIZAFE
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly ®R - B EEEAENRE
attributable transaction costs. BEEELERIHA
The Company’s financial liabilities include other AARMERBEBRFEAM
payables and accruals, amount due to brokers, amount ERNHRIBEREFTER - BN
due to a related company, and loan payable and other K AR - BN R E
borrowings. NAIFIA - BREZR R A
BE -
Subsequent measurement Higst=
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities CRBENEEHENRT
depends on their classification as follows: HINNHHEMmE -
Loans and borrowings BERREE
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and MiaERE - T EERRE
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised REBRABERA R g
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless HAKAFTE - WEITRFE
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in BIBER  BEAFE - £
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses BUHER B ER RNMZER
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when MEETHEBREDR - WS
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the REESEBRRERTRER -
effective interest rate amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any ST E B R AN A ET R U B
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs RraEIrasmE - AR
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. iﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁ%‘ﬂ%*ﬁﬂfﬁﬂ'}%ﬁﬁ
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in KA o ERR N R SR A
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. B %’%Zﬁﬁkﬁkzﬁ
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability when, and only when, it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial
position at fair value. All transaction costs for these
instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and financial liabilities (other than those
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are measured initially at their fair value plus any directly
attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures financial
instruments which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
those financial instruments are recorded in “Net change in
fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss”. Interest earned and dividend revenue elements
of these instruments are recorded separately in “Interest
income” and “Dividend income” respectively.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(d) Subsequent measurement (Continued)

(e)

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, as well as
through the amortisation process.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments,
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised where:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)
(e) Derecognition (Continued)

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained. The Company derecognises
a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial
asset or a group of financial assets classified as loans and receivables
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor, or
a group of debtors, is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and, where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults. The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred) discounted
using the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments using the effective interest method.

Dividend income and expense

Dividend income is recognised on the date on which the
investments are quoted ex-dividend or, where no ex-dividend
rate is quoted, when the Company’s right to receive the payment
is established. Dividend income is presented gross of any
non-recoverable withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in
the statement of comprehensive income. Dividend expense relating
to equity securities sold short is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive the payment is established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Company receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 23 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company'’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Company or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

24 FESTHBERMEGE)

LA 4 35 B0 0 9 3 ()

AREEEIIEMIHSRR LSRR IE
% MEBRSRIERECRET TS
BRI ERE-—EMSXERBK
2 REE BERmEXIERBEERSE
ER - EHeRGAEREE  AIREM
BEMTRIR R SRISIEADERK -

i

B AR s A E AR 2 AR SIE DS - i
MAEBBRMZ RE G RERAXR
PRK L SRS DR RERR, © LS - BLIE DN LA
i 737%% BT RN R FELES S
BEAMNZERME - REKBHZE
BB -

il

-

=
/

0

H]]?

BUAERAENRMEHEE  2RED
RAEHE HEIE - xR = KRR
EAIRX GERFER o th B ERREE
& AR w3 E 8 2 5 DA 35 57 8 5k i+
ZEREN o AT - A IR E A
HBM - WHEEARLER ZBERR
B - RIRZIR 85 K T RN & a0 L BR P
WA BRA B 2 R BRI -

AAEERABNE - RMARTTERRE#
BYERRARRININEE -

S ER A BB AR/ F3R 2017 81




Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHTHEBEGE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties BER
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the ETHIERT - & /\%ZZ/\iZE@%?}
Company if that person: IR R BERK B BN 5B R
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@ BETR—BATHZATZHEE
family and that person: FYIREERKE ez AT
(i) has control or joint control over the Company; (i) bl ek HEE S A A
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or (iy HEARRBEERTE &
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (iiy ABAQFHARAEFRAH
Company or a parent of the Company; FEEBABMNHEP —FK
E )
or B4
(b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following (b) MATEMBERER - BXEEE
conditions applies: KATEHE
(i)  the entity and the Company are members of the same () %EBERAQAEBER-—%H
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and olp A= N ( L Dﬂi%&ﬁﬁ
fellow subsidiary is related to the others); REBNL B A
IS Eji’%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
&)
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy, —EAEEAS—EEMNBE
other entity (or of or an associate or joint venture of Eﬂié%ﬁ%(ﬁkﬁ%—g
a member of a group of which the other entity is a BETEEEAKE QR
member); %ﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁ%)
(i the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the (iy ZEBERAAGHRE-—F
same third party; =AMaatE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HAERAF=ZFEEMNEG
other entity is an associate of the third entity; Eh¥E ME—EBRELE
=HERNBE N
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZEBRAAFH—FKER
benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity NEEAENEENREESDN
related to the Company; BA M R A BEER A AT 8
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ZEBZ()FTHEA T
identified in (a); S H AR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Company or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Share capital

The Company’s ordinary shares are classified as equity as the
Company has full discretion on repurchasing the shares and on
dividend distributions.

Issuance and acquisition of ordinary shares are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Upon issuance of shares, the consideration received is included in
equity.

Transaction costs incurred by the Company in issuing or acquiring
its own equity instruments are accounted for as a deduction
from equity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have
been avoided.

Own equity instruments which are acquired are deducted from
equity and accounted for at amounts equal to the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs.

No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Company. A
dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is accounted
for as a deduction from retained earnings. An interim dividend
is recognised directly as a liability in the period in which it is
irrevocably declared by the Board of Directors. A final dividend is
recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the
annual general meeting of shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand demand deposits and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The Company is exempt from all forms of taxation in Cayman
Islands, including income, capital gains and withholding taxes.
However, in some jurisdictions, investment income and capital
gains are subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the
income. Withholding tax is a generic term used for the amount
of withholding tax deducted at the source of the income. The
Company presents the withholding tax separately from the gross
investment income in profit or loss.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the Hong
Kong dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The Company’s performance
is evaluated and its liquidity is managed in Hong Kong dollars.
Therefore, the Hong Kong dollar is considered as the currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.

Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions during the Year are translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising from translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translations (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions gains and losses on financial
instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are
included in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income
as part of the “Net change in fair value of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”. Foreign exchange
differences on other financial instruments are included in profit
or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as “Foreign
exchange gains/loss, net”.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Company has the resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. These
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex
tax regulations and changes in tax laws on foreign withholding
tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective
jurisdiction in which it invests. The amounts of these provisions are
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits
and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity
and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of investments.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business
units based on the categories of investments. During the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

Listed securities — Investments in equity securities listed on relevant
stock exchange

Unlisted securities — Investments in private equity funds and private
equities

The Company’s turnover and segment result by geographical areas
are not presented as significant transactions are mainly based in

Hong Kong.

Further details of the Company’s investments are included in note 6
and note 15.

The following is an analysis of the Company’s results by operating

MEEANMES  AARRIEREHER
B D EBEL - REZE2017F K2016F
12A31BIEFE » ZRRIESR AT MI{E

A 2MEL L

EHRES - RERERBESR S L
MRS

FLEMES -~ RENMLEREES R
SR

MR EARSEEEEBRT - ElA
REE K 25 IR R 8 5 82 R
HEPRAE -

EBAARRRRENE —SHIBEHRW T
K BIEE15 °

AT RIREED U AR EEMIEZ

segment: DA
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EiEH FEHmES st

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT
For the year ended BZE2017%12A31H°

31 December 2017 HEFE

Segment revenue and results DEBA K R (441,543,172) (31,063,176)  (472,606,348)
Bank interest income IRITHRBHA 320
Interest earned from bond BEHFBHBA 432,739
Other income H Uz A 31,000
Unallocated expenses RAOEFX (37,234,307)
Loss before tax BrIF ARSI (509,376,596)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., RESIER(E)
(Continued)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EmES ELTHFES FEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BIT
For the year ended H=20165F12831H
31 December 2016 IFFE
Segment revenue and results DEPUTA K FEAE 108,073,840 (17,959,716) 90,114,124
Bank interest income RITH B ULA 247

ADBCFX

Unallocated expenses

Profit before tax B AT

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, segment
results represented the net gains or losses on fair values of listed
equity securities, unlisted private equity funds and private equities
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
the corresponding interest income as well as dividend income
earned by each segment without the allocation of administrative
expenses, finance costs, interest income from bank deposits and
the Investment Manager's fees.

As management considers the Company’s nature of business
to be investment trading and there are no major customers, no
information regarding major customers or segment revenue is
presented.

o BT

(33,073,233)
57,041,138

HE2017F M2016F12A31HIEFE
DESEEE DB RRATFEEBIBLRY
RremEEY FTiREBEFUARIEE
MALEREES RALEREAFLERS
BB F R AR B A RE D
BEELZ BB A - MR RITEREAS -
ISR AR RARTT I K F B A R & &
EEBABASE -

HREEERRARFNEBELE RKR
EEZAYEBIBEF  MHEZIEA

AEREFPINBRANER -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFEHER(E)
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Company’s assets and liabilities NTAREEDERRAEERAR
by operating segment: FRYEZ DM -
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EmEE FEHRESH st
HK$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2017 2017F12A31H
Assets: BE
Financial assets at fair value BN ESEBERY R
through profit or loss ZEREE 75,663,864 106,567,621 182,231,485
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 10,365,389
Total assets BEMAE 192,596,874
Liabilities: afE:
Unallocated liabilities Ao EE 74,417,198
Total liabilities A58 74,417,198
92 China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2017




Notes to Financial Statements

RIS
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFEHER(E)
(Continued)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EES JELETHES #REt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H
Assets: BE
Financial assets at fair value BAVEEBIERY R
through profit or loss ZEREE 600,251,989 99,947,569 700,199,558
Unallocated assets RO EE 16,078,795
Total assets BEMRE 716,278,353
Liabilities: BfE
Unallocated liabilities FoicafE 248,404,588
Total liabilities BERE 248,404,588
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating BLEsE SR IR RN S ERIA B ER M
resources between segments, all assets are allocated to reportable = Bige c ENRBEBLHMEK
segments other than deposits, prepayments and other receivables, T8 - RS AR  RIETRIEE E K
amount due from brokers, deferred tax assets and cash and cash HehBE2EEI FTEEEHDER
equivalents. A2WAE
REVENUE 5 WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHGAT :
2017 2016
20176 2016%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Dividend income from listed equity EiEREAFRERA
securities 357,014 1,395,388
Dividend income from private equity FLE AR AR B A - 1,074,443
Interest earned from bond BEHFBHBA 432,739 -
Bank interest income IRITHFEHA 320 247
Other income E A 31,000 -
821,073 2,470,078
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6. NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT 6. MOV EEBERYER2EH

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EEZ(BR) W&aFE
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
FHEsS FEHES et
HK$ HK$ HKS$
A ITT BT BT
For the year ended HZE2017912A31H
31 December 2017 IFFE
Net realised (loss)/gain on BATESEBERIEZ
financial assets at fair value CREEDEH(EE),/
through profit or loss W EE (292,683,897) 696,772  (291,987,125)
Net unrealised loss on financial RATEERERIEZ
assets at fair value through SREERYIEEE
profit or loss FE (149,216,289) (31,759,948)  (180,976,237)

Total of net realised and unrealised 5t AIBZERA 2 2818 &

loss included in profit or loss REBEEEFE (441,900,186) (31,063,176)  (472,963,362)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EWmESH I EMESH FE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BIT
For the year ended HZE20164F12A318
31 December 2016 IFFE
Net realised loss on financial BAFEERERYIERZ
assets at fair value through TREECD¥IESE
profit or loss FE (2,811,973) - (2,811,973)
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on BATESEBERIERY
financial assets at fair value TRMEEREFRUE
through profit or loss (E1E)FE 109,490,424 (19,034,158) 90,456,266
Total of net realised and SFABRERZEZIR K
unrealised gain/(loss) included REH W (EE)
in profit or loss #RE 106,678,451 (19,034,158) 87,644,293
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

~

The Company'’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

BRBLAT (B51R) H R

AAR 2 BEAT(BE) M H BRI

THEIERIEN
2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$ HK$
BT T
(@)  Finance costs (a) BATEACAR
Interest on other borrowings Hibg B 258 14,929,372 11,149,659
Interest on notes and borrowings SEREEFE
(Note 21) (M5E21) 8,591,091 4,856,426
23,520,463 16,006,085
(b)  Other items (by HAIEE
Investment management fee KEEEE (M)
(Note 11) 960,000 960,000
Foreign exchange loss, net SNEREE - R 20,561 424
Auditors’ remuneration REEN B 850,000 280,000
Staff cost (excluding directors’ BIXNAN(TBIEES
remuneration) <) 1,543,790 2,266,198
Minimum operating lease payments B 2 HEEE
in respect of properties MERZ 1,268,255 1,287,008
Consultancy fee =k 816,000 3,379,456
Legal and professional fees FENRBEATER 2,348,503 2,839,814
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EXME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

RBiE EmRE - BE R A& 5E383(1)
(@b OMOHERAR(HEZSHEE
BRE)BOIE2H D TURBZ AFEEE

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: EeuT -
2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fees we 1,242,145 1,254,967
1,242,145 1,254,967
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM=(H)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December HZ=2017F 12 A31 B L FESEEHH
2017 as follows: E NN
Equity-settled
share-based
Name of Directors Fees Bonus compensation Total
NEREE
EEpg ik ALFI 9 B 1 SR @t
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Independent non-executive BIFYTES
directors
Mr. Faris lbrahim Taha Ayoub Faris Ibrahim Taha AyoubsE 4 117,000 - - 117,000
Mr. Lam Chun Ho NI 117,000 - - 117,000
Mr. Pun Tat Shan A E 117,000 - - 117,000
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi HEILE
(Appointed on 22 December 2017) (R2017F 128228 EZAT) 3,145 - - 3,145
354,145 - - 354,145
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gu Xu HELE 360,000 - - 360,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREELE 528,000 - - 528,000
888,000 - - 888,000
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM=(H)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December HZ=2016F 12 A31 A L FESEERH
2016 as follows: T
Equity-settled
share-based
Name of Directors Fees Bonus  compensation Total
MRS
e e AR #9 R f Em @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Independent non-executive BIFYTES
directors
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub’t & 117,000 - 117,000
Mr. Lam Chun Ho NS 117,000 - 117,000
Mr. Huang Liangkuai BERREA
(Retired on 27 May 2016) (R201645A27RRA) 47,492 - 47,492
Mr. Pun Tat Shan EE A
(Appointed on 8 April 2016) (720164 A8HEERIT) 85,475 - 85,475
366,967 - 366,967
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gu Xu BELE 360,000 - 360,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BEXRLE 528,000 - 528,000
888,000 - 888,000

Fees paid to or for the executive directors are generally emoluments

FAMTEEXNHNER —RREEER
NREHERORGOME -

in respect of those person’s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company.
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9.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9. EEERMEX

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$ HK$

BIT BT

Salaries, wages and allowances e~ TEK&ERL 1,506,474 2,193,170
Retirement benefit expenses RRETF X

— Defined contribution plan — E R G & 37,316 73,028

1,543,790 2,266,198

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme in Hong
Kong which complies with the requirements under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF") Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to the
MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Company (the employer) and its
Hong Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, as defined in the MPF
Schemes Ordinance. Both the Company and its employees’ monthly
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and contributions
beyond these amounts are voluntary. The contributions are fully
and immediately vested upon payment.

As at 31 December 2017, there were no forfeited contributions
(2016: Nil).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. ZEBREHFMES
The five highest paid employees during the Year included rEERA R NEEBRIE3RES
3 Directors (2016: 2 Directors), details of whose remunerations are (20165 : 2%E=H)  HENFINFEHR
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the Year of R EXFIEES o WIARTERHEET
the remaining 2 (2016: 3) highest paid employees who are neither BABREH2%(2016%F : 38 )ZEH
a Director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: e B REEZMETBLT ¢
2017 2016
201745 20164
HKS$ HK$
BT &I
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 -~ 2B R EWER 1,390,990 1,683,390
Retirement benefit expenses RRENF X
— Defined contribution plan — E R G & 31,541 48,210
1,422,531 1,731,600
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FEERIFTETBRAEESTHAL
individuals whose remuneration fall within the following band is as HE E A TSR ASAT -
follows:

Number of individuals

A
2017 2016
20175 20164
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ%1,000,0007 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000/8 7T 1
2 3
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11.

FEES

Administration fee

Amicorp Hong Kong Limited (the “Administrator”) is entitled to
receive an administration fee which is calculated based on the net
asset value of the Company at valuation day equal to the rate of
0.11% per annum.

The administration fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
USD7,500 plus 7% disbursement charge (2016: USD7,500 plus 7%
disbursement charge) and is payable monthly in arrears.

The administration fee for the Year is HK$762,723 (2016:
HK$747,571). As at 31 December 2017, an administration fee of
HK$62,719 (2016: HK$62,231) was payable to the Administrator.

Custodian fee

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch (the “Custodian”) is entitled
to a custodian fee which is calculated based on the net asset value
of the Company at valuation day equal to the rate of 0.02% per
annum.

The custodian fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of USD2,500
(2016: USD2,500) and is payable monthly in arrears.

The custodian fee for the Year is HK$238,308 (2016: HK$261,732).
As at 31 December 2017, a custodian fee of HK$19,627 (2016:
HK$20,222) was payable to the Custodian.

Management fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to a monthly management fee
of HK$80,000 (2016: HK$80,000) and payable monthly in arrears.

The management fee for the Year is HK$960,000 (2016:
HK$960,000). As at 31 December 2017, a management fee of
HK$80,000 (2016: HK$80,000) was payable to the Investment
Manager.
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12. TAXATION

12. BiE

The major components of income tax charge for the years ended

31 December 2017 and 2016 are:

HZE2017FEK2016F12A31HIEFEAT
BHREYTEHMDA

2017 2016
201745 2016%F
HK$ HK$
BT &I

Current tax: BIHARR IR -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEH = -
Deferred tax IERERR IR 1,361,062 9,167,538
Tax charge for the year REEHIARS 1,361,062 9,167,538

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit before

tax using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax

rate is as follows:

EREERE ZHRBLA(BER),SRFIAT
ERZBIAR X BIRERRETE 2R
THFSCHRRANT

2017 2016

20175 20164

HK$ HK$

BT I

(Loss)/Profit before tax BREAT (B 1R), SR A (509,376,596) 57,041,138

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% REEME16.5%E/TIE (84,047,138) 9,411,788

Income not subject to tax BN 2 WA (116,522) (410,025)

Expenses not deductible for tax AT 192,231 165,775

Unused tax losses and deductible REARIBEERL

temporary difference not recognised REER AN TR =5 85,332,491 -
Tax charge at the effective rate of 16.5% ZEFEFIR16.5%:1EH)

IR < 1,361,062 9,167,538

o BT
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12.

TAXATION (Continued)

Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman Islands law, there is no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
currently in effect.

The Company received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Council of the Cayman Islands to the effect that, for a period
of twenty years from the date of the undertaking, no law that
is hereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax on
income will be levied on the Company.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the Year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Company did not generate any assessable
profit for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

For presentation purposes, deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the statement of financial position. The deferred
tax assets/(liabilities) arising from unrealised investment valuation
(losses)/gains amounted to HK$Nil (2016: HK$10,357,717) and
deferred tax assets arising from losses available for offsetting
against future taxable profits amounted to HK$Nil (2016: deferred
tax assets arising from losses available to offsetting against future
taxable profits amounted to HK$11,718,779).

Deferred tax of the Company are recognised based on tax rates
that are expected to apply to the periods when the temporary
differences are realised or settled.
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12. BiE(E)
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TR AR A | Sk U e A Bl B SR AR

ARAFRERIHSHERESRITES
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b 285 2 1& R M B (E AT 3L WA DN E
AR EEBR TS U AR RHH -

58

BEANEMIBIERAFEREBEEZ
[HET AR & AR 2 16.5% (20164 -
16.5% )5t & »

HRARRFREZ2017F K% 20165F12 A
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13.

14.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share amount (2016:
earnings) is based on the Company's loss of HK$510,737,658 (2016:
profit of HK$47,873,600) for the Year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the Year of 749,157,841 (2016:
547,516,847 ordinary shares), as adjusted retrospectively to reflect
the impact of bonus element of the rights issue and bonus issue
completed on 23 January 2017.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND AMOUNT DUE FROM
BROKERS

13.

14.

ARAEBEEEREARESE
B’ (&8]),BF

BREAREEEBEE (20165 « BF) 2
BUARRRIERE=SEABRGAFE
KX A)E518510,737,658 78 7T (2016 4F -
i 147,873,600 L) R AF[E B 1T
TR A N AE S 19 749,157,841 B4 (2016
% 1 547,516,847 LR )T ESH -
W EEH BT AR 201741 823
H e AR RALAR 31T 2 AL IR EB D KO 52
2,

BE - ANREREMERR
TR AR B AR AL AFRIR

2017 2016
201756 2016%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Non-current; JEMmED -
Deposits bi7s 568,162 522,206

Current; mEp

Prepayments and other receivables TS FRIA I B Ath B R IE 410,943 371,230
Amount due from brokers FEU AR 40 A FRIE 5,732,651 13
6,143,594 371,243

As at the end of the reporting period, none of the above receivables
is either past due or impaired.

o BT

REEIR - Bl fE Wk AR & A B R
ERE -
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15.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

15. ROV EZEBRHIRz &8

BE

2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$ HK$
HBIT I
Listed equity securities — Hong Kong IhERZESF B 68,865,123 600,251,989
Suspended listed equity securities TEEE L LTERES
— Hong Kong —B5B 6,798,741 -
Investments in private equity funds RERLEREESR
— The Cayman Islands —HEHS 531,630 20,608,602
Investments in private equities RENILERE
— British Virgin Islands —RBRAHS 70,940,000 52,538,976
Investments in private equities WERTLERE — 'S
— Hong Kong 35,095,991 26,799,991
182,231,485 700,199,558

The fair values of the listed equity securities, except for suspended
listed equity securities are determined based on the quoted market
bid prices available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of
the reporting period.

The fair values of the suspended listed equity securities as at 31
December 2017 were determined by the board of directors based
on the valuation report performed by independent third party.
The unrealised loss represented by the decline in their fair values
compared to their carrying amounts prior to the suspension of
the securities were recognised in profit or loss. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, an unrealised loss in respect of fair
value changes of suspended listed equity securities amounting to
HK$53,300,922 (2016: Nil) was recognised in profit or loss, which
was determined based on the valuation experts’ opinion about the
fair values of these securities as at 31 December 2017.

The Company invested in private equity funds which are not quoted
in an active market. Transactions in such investments do not occur
on a regular basis. The Company uses the net asset value of the
funds attributable to the investments held by the Company to
determine its fair value as the Company determined that this is the
price at which shareholders subscribe and redeem from the fund.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The Company invested in private equities which are not quoted
in an active market. The fair value of the private equities at 31
December 2017 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out as at that date by independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Company. The valuation of the
investments in these private entities used discounted cash flow
projections and are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy. The
most significant unobservable input is the rate of return on the
investment.

Net unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of HK$180,976,237 (2016: net unrealised gain
of HK$90,456,266) has been recognised in profit or loss. The
Company does not own or control more than 20% of the voting
rights in any one of these listed and unlisted investments. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Company is not able to exercise any
significant influence on the financial and operating policies on these
investee companies, and all of these listed and unlisted investments
are not regarded as associates of the Company and were accounted
for as financial assets through profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2017.

15.

o BT

BAVEZBRHZS RS
EE(&)

ARAIRENLSEREERIGERNT
SR ERE - 20179128318 © AL
SR R A T AE T E R E AR B
BB LA BN ERMEMRZAED
REEFTESH - RNZELEEEBNR
BEWHETRBBRRSRIEN - Wit
RAFESHEZEZFN RAEAN
AT ERE ABIR T AR ERIRE -

RATEERBERIEZeREE 2 RE
15 /518 % {8180,976,237/8 7T (20164 : &
BN E5 I F(E90,456,26676 T) B ER
RTERR o 2N A TN S HE 7 2l 5 ) _E AT e
—IE LTSI ETIRE B IB20% TN -

EERB AATIREHZEEIRARNT
RS R EER R EREMNERTE T

EAEZE2017F12 A31HIEFE - 286
ZELMRIELMIREM TR BERF]
BB AR WA RIIEFE RBRIIER
DEEE
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. KA R E 2T ERE 2 H15
BY THE COMPANY

Particulars of investments held by the Company as at 31 December 2017128318 - KARIRE EMR
2017 disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as BIE2ERBEMSEREANFBNOT :
follows:

Dividend

Net asset received/ % of gross

Proportion of attributable receivable assets

investee's Market to the during the of the

Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company Year Company
k% WREE

fREAR ADAEL B/l L9

FREQRER FHnE BALA A (3! EERE RS BEERMM
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR

Financial assets at fair value through
profit o loss
RATEFEERIE EREE

Listed equity securities
LhgER%
Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited Note (3) 4.54% 30529 50,400 HK§91.22 - 26.17
millon
BRSHERERLA FiEt(a) 4.54% 30,529 50400 91,220,000 - %17
BT
Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited Note (b) 1.28% 4218 5,455 HK$1.68 - 283
milion
FERABERRERL HisE(b) 1.28% 4218 5455 1,680,000 - 283
B
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited Note (¢) 0.54% 3,360 4,080 HK$0.63 - 212
million
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited lE] 0.54% 3360 4,080 630,000 - w12
B
Town Health International Medical Note (d) 0.39% 41835 3,686 HK$16.07 82 191
Group Limited (Suspended millon
as at 31 December 2017)
FRARERSEARLA A017F Hf3E(0) 039% 41,835 368 16,070,000 8 191
125315 FEE) X
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD

16. A RAFHEZETEREZFHE

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Dividend
Net asset received/ % of gross
Proportion of attributable receivable assets
investee's Market to the during the of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company Year Company
5 WREE
fREAT KOAEE  Bl/EK (9%
FRENDER FHHE BALH A ¢ EERE Rs  £EEEMM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL Tt
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or oss (Continued)
HATEFBRRIIE 2BAE(E)
Listed equity securities (Continued)
LikgEs (%)
Lerado Financial Group Company Limited Note (¢) 391% 18,000 2113 HK$53.63 - 110
(Suspended as at 31 December 2017) millon
EREREEARLA fizte) 391% 18,000 2113 53630000 - 110
(R0I7£12/315EER) B
Private equities - British Virgin Islands
LENE-ZRELRE
Morris Global Group Limited (Formerly Provision of quality brokerage, corporate 1752% 42,79 43,500 HK$31.54 - 2259
known as Gransing Financial Holdings finance, asset management and millon
Limited) financial adviser services to institutional
and indlvidual investors through its
subsidiaries
Morris Global Group Limited FREMBAAMBERLARERRYE 1752% 42,799 43500 31540000 - 259
(SRS RIERERAR) BERD PRUE AEERRAK AT
EfRH
WinHealth International Company Limited Engaged in pharmaceutical products 8.40% 30,000 27440 HK$4.60 - 1425
distribution in Mainland China through millon
its subsidlaries
ERERBRA BRENEL AN EMAHBEER 8.40% 30,000 2440 4600000 - 145
7
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. KA R E 2T ERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Dividend
Net asset received/ % of gross
Proportion of attributable receivable assets
investee's Market to the during the of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company Year Company
5 i
fREAT KOAEE  Bl/EK (9%
FRENDER FHHE BALH s ¢ EERE Rs  £EEEMM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL AL
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or oss (Continued)
HATEFBRRIIE 2BAE(E)
Private equities - Hong Kong
LERE-5E
Help U Credit Finance Limited Engaged in money lending business in 19.95% 19,000 16,570 HK$15.94 - 860
Hong Kong million
EABHBRAA REEUSERRE 19.95% 19,000 16570 15,340,000 - 860
BT
Alpha financial Group Limited (Formerly Engaged in underwriting and placing of 9.99% 8,000 11350 HK$5.97 - 589
known as Ample Orient Capital Limited) securities millon
ERATREARALT tEErasns 9.99% 8,000 11350 5970000 - 589
(HRERRAETERAR) AT
Sense Key Design Holdings Limited Engaged in provision of custom interior 19.90% 25,000 7176 HK$0.94 - 373
design services for residential and millon
commercial projects in a board range of
styles and sensibilties
RER T TRERARAT IEREERAR AR RIS ERARE 19.90% 25,000 7176 940,000 - ENE
BHBRENEHRR AT
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. KA R E 2T ERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Particulars of investments held by the Company as at 31 December #2016F 128318 + KARIRE EMR
2016 disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as BIE2ERBEMSEREANFBNOT :
follows:
Dividend
Proportion Netasset received/
of investee's attributable ~ receivable % of gross
capital Market tothe during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business owned Cost value  Company theyear  Company
WEEE
BRfRE KOEEE  Bh/BM GADTA
FREAREH FHHE el Bx W RERE Re  EEAAM
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000
TR TR TR
Financial assets at fair value
through profit o loss
FATEEBERIE, 2 A2
Listed equity securities
IikER
Luen Wong Group Holdings Limited Pravision of civil engineering works and investment holding 0.65% 21 149,570 HK$0.54 - 2088
milion
BREEARARAT REIATENRRERRER 0.65% 210 149570 S40000%TT - 2088
China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited ~ Provision of biometric and RFID products and solution 297% 2,29 45040 HK$17.83 - 632
(Formerly known as RCG Holdings Services milion
Limited)
¢E%”§ﬁ%§ﬁﬁATﬂf TREE  REENERIREE R IR ERE R 297% 2,29 45240 17,830,000 - 63
RIERLR BT
Town Health International Medical Group — Note (d) 0.41% 46,708 39313 HK$17.92 311 549
Limited (Suspended as at million
31 December 2017)
FRASBESEARLA A W7E Wil 041% 46,708 39313 17,920,000 311 549
12F31RERRE) o
(China Parenting Netwark Holdings Limited  Engaged in the online platform focusing on the children, 136% 19463 36,405 RMBA.86 - 508
babies and maternity market in China to provide milion
marketing and promotional services; e-commerce
business; and licensing of smarthardware devices
PEE AR ERARAT WEREZINERRETSNRATL  RERER 1.36% 19,463 36405 AR% - 508
EERE SRR ERRIRE 4,860,000
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD

16. A RAFHEZETEREZFHE

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Dividend
Proportion Netasset  received/
of investee's attributable  receivable % of gross
capital Market tothe during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business owned Cost value  Company theyear  Company
WEEE
EEHRE ‘ KNARE  Ch/BM ARLEE
FRENIER £BKE el L nE  BERE B8  &EEAM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tt ThR T
Financial assets at fair value
rhrough profit or loss (Continued)
ZITEEERRIE DREE(E)
Listed equity securities (Continued)
LiksEs(8)
LEAP Holdings Group Limited Provision of foundation works and ancillary semvices; and 2.66% 26,250 36,400 HK$9.22 - 5.08
construction wastes handling at the public fllreception milion
facities managed by the Government in Hong Kong
HELREERRAR {ESRIMETRREERH) RN EERNER 266% 26250 36400 9,220,000 - 508
ARERBIREE TR W# AT
Interactive Entertainment China Cultural - Engaged in the mobile internet cultural business, provision 543% 40297 30719 HKS53.94 - 429
Technology Investments Limited of IT senvices and integral marketing services; medical millon
diagnostic and health check services; hospitality and
related services in Australia; money lending busingss;
and assets investments business
ERMEHRRERRAT WEBIEREX2H  REEAHRRHREALH 5.43% 40297 30719 53940000 - 429
i BEYERRREE  RENRREETER AT
BBRE : BEEK: REERARK
Hong Kong Education (Int') Investments ~ Provision of private educational services, investment in 4.02% 11,060 23980 HK$15.53 - 33
Limited securites, property investments and money lending millon
business
BEAE BN REEEERAT RIMAIERE  B5RE  MERERGERH 4.02% 11,060 B9 15530000 - 335
AT
Convoy Global Holdings Limited Engaged in the independent financial advisory business, 0.63% am 146 HKI30.83 - 299
(Suspended as at 31 December 2017) money lending business, proprietary investment milion
business, asset management business and corporate
finance advisory services
RRRERARA WERUENERRR REXE BERERK: 0.63% a0 21426 30830000 - 29
(R2017512A31REREE) BEERERROSRHERRNE A7
AMCO United Holding Limited Engaged in the manufacture and sale of medical devices 195% 14,748 21,019 HK$5.91 - 193
products and plastic moulding products; provision milion
of public relations sevices; and provision of human
TESOUICES Management services
ERERARAT WERERHERBRAERREBRAER  RIAL 195% 14,748 2019 5910000 - 293
BERE  RREANERERRHS AT
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. KA R E 2T ERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Dividend
Netasset  received/
Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investee's capital Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business owned Cost value  Company theyear ~ Company
REEE
RRfRE ADAEE  BU/EN AR
FrREARER FHHE -] o wE  EERE ke BERML
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TER TEn TER
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)
RATEFBER I DREE(E)
Private equity - British virgin Islands
IERE-ZRELES
Morris Global Group Limited (Formerly  Provision of quality brokerage, 17.52% 38,419 52539 HK$21.05 - 133
known as Gransing Financial Holdings  corporate finance, asset million
Limited management and financial adviser
services 1o institutional and individual
investors through its subsidiaries
Morris Global Group Limited (#1788, BRENBATMEERILAREZE 1752% 38419 52,539 21,050,000 - 733

ERERERLA) REEEAL C3RA EEE BT
ELaBRRREEHR
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD
BY THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (Jun Yang) was incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (stock code: 00397). Jun Yang is principally engaged in financial services
businesses.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the audited loss attributable to
shareholders of Jun Yang was approximately HK$923 million and its audited net
assets attributable to shareholders of Jun Yang was approximately HK$2,009
million.

Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (Xinhua) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong (stock code: 00309). Xinhua is principally engaged in cleaning and
media businesses.

For the six months ended 30 September 2017, the unaudited loss attributable
to shareholders of Xinhua was approximately HK$8 million and its unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Xinhua was approximately HK$131
million.

Classified Group (Holdings) Limited (Classified) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the GEM board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong (stock code: 08232). Classified and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the operation of restaurants and the production and sales of bakery
products.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the audited loss attributable
to shareholders of Classified was approximately HK$36 million and its audited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Classified was approximately HK$117
million.

Town Health International Medical Group Limited (Town Health) was
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 03886). Town Health is principally
engaged in the provision of healthcare and dental services, managed care
business and beauty and cosmetic medicine business.

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the unaudited profit attributable
to shareholders of Town Health was approximately HK$44 million and
its unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of Town Health was
approximately HK$4,119 million.

Under the direction of the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”), trading
in Town Health's shares has been suspended since 27 November 2017.

Lerado Financial Group Company Limited (“Lerado”) was incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong (stock code: 1225). Lerado is principally engaged in the financial
services, manufacture and sales of medical products and plastic toys business.

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the unaudited loss attributable to
shareholders of Lerado was approximately HK$462 million and the unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Lerado as at 30 June 2017 was
approximately HK$1,372 million.

Under the direction of the SFC, trading in Lerado’s shares has been suspended
since 6 June 2017.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17. BERREEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$ HK$
T T
Cash at banks RITEE 3,653,633 13,824,284

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The cash at banks are placed with DBS Bank Limited
and Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the other payables and accruals
were non-interest-bearing and had an average term of less than
three months.

AMOUNT DUE TO BROKERS

As at 31 December 2017, amount due to brokers include
HK$5,646,820 (2016: HK$169,125,134) of margin payable to
brokers with interest rates ranged from 8% (2016: 8% to 10%) per
annum. As at 31 December 2017, the Company had pledged Hong
Kong listed securities of approximately HK$63 million to secure
the margin payables to the brokers (2016: approximately HK$496
million).

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the amount due to a related
company represented management fee payable to the Investment
Manager. The amount is non-interest-bearing and has a repayment
term of less than one month.

18.

19.

20.

o BT

RITAEE HERTHRITERME ZF
P ERBAE - RITHESECFAER
RITARARRBESRITEANTT °

HttENRERETER

R2017F K%2016F12 A31H - HfthfES
RIENERTERB TN B R FE D
R=EA -

e AR AFRIR

201712 A31 8 » ERH&E L AFTE
BIEEME L N ZIRFE $5,646,820%
7L (20164F : 169,125,134 7T) » F F
ENFT8E(20164F : 8EE10/E) o A
2017912 A31H » ARREEHEES L
T 7% % #963,000,0007% 7T (2016 4F : 47
496,000,000/ 70 ) LAES B &2 A 2
RFED ©

P —EBE A RRE

R2017F %2016 128318 » BN —FH
BEARFIARENREEEAZER
B o BN S RIE KR DR
—{@A -
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21. LOAN PAYABLE AND BORROWINGS 21. ENERREE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
7.5% coupon notes due 2018 R2018F R8I 2 7 SERBEE
(Note (a)) (KftE(a)) 31,976,320 69,285,628
8% coupon notes due 2017 R2017F R 2 8EE B FIE
(Note (b)) (FtE (b)) - 8,000,000
8.5% revolving loan (Note (c)) 8.5EEERE M (FIzE() 35,000,000 -
66,976,320 77,285,628
Notes: MisT -
(a) In April 2016, the Company issued two-year 7.5% coupon unlisted and (a) HR2016F48 » RARBEITMFHTISERE
unsecured notes due in 2018 (the “Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount JE LT B EIEIREE - ZEER2018F 2 H
of HK$71,300,000. The Notes carried an interest of 7.5% per annum payable (IZE]) - &% /A71,300,0008 7T « 2
every three months. BIRFHNETSEFERAERE=AALXN—
e
(b) In October 2016, the Company issued one year 8% coupon unlisted and (b) HR2016F 108 + AR AT —FHSEERE
unsecured notes due in 2017 (the “Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount JE LT B EIIREE - ZEER2017F 2
of HK$8,000,000. The Notes carried an interest of 8% per annum payable (IZEWH ) » A€ 4258 58,000,000 7T - 245
every three months. BEMESENERARE=EAZN—IX -

(c) In March 2017, the Company had a loan amount HK$35,000,000 borrowed 2017638 - ARBRA—EBBLE=FEE

©

from an independent third party. The loan carried an interest of 8.5% per 35,000,000 TTE K o EFIRF FE85E 5T
annum payable every three months. BRERE=EAZRN—K -
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EEEEEWNT :
2017 2016
20175 20165
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Within 1 year which contain a repayment —FR A SR B

on demand clause ERIER 66,976,320 -
Within 1 year —FA - 8,000,000
Between 1 to 2 years —FEMFA - 69,285,628
66,976,320 77,285,628
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22. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the years
are as follows:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

22, ERERIE

FRBRLEREEE(BE)

EEBEEE(Af)

Losses available

Unrealised (gains)/
|osses on financial

E U

for offsetting assets at
against future fair value through
taxable profits profit or loss Total
BATEER
A ERR iyl
ERBAR SREEREHR
pd 7 (hi),/ B8 @it
HK$ HK$ HKS
B B B
Gross deferred tax assets at 1 January 2016 M2016F1 A1 BRER EEE LS 5,961,033 4,567,567 10,528,600
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ REFR BT A/ (1)
during the year BT 5,757,746 (14,925,284) (9,167,538)
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabllities) at 120165123187
31 December 2016 BEREEE/(8f)8% 11,718,779 (10,357,717) 1,361,062
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to profit or loss ~ REERBE(HNK)/FAZELHE
during the Year (Note12) (MzE12) (11,718,779) 10,357,717 (1,361,062)
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) at 201751283182
31 December 2017 BEREAE/(BR)E% - - -
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22,

23.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Company for financial reporting purposes:

22.

SRR ()
EABEA ()
RRIME  ETEEHBEERAE

ERMBARRKEE - AT HARRAIF
BTSRRI IR AT

2017 2016
20175 20165
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RS R TR NTER
in the statement of financial position ZIEER IR B B R R - 1,361,062

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has unused
tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
the statement of financial position, amounting to approximately
HK$398,689,000 (2016: Nil). These unused tax losses are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax asset
is recognised in respect of these losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The Company also has deductible temporary
differences arising from net unrealised loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss for which no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in the statement of financial position, amounting
to approximately HK$119,020,000 (2016: Nil). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s Share Option Scheme was adopted on 1 June 2015,
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 28 May 2015.

The limit of the number of securities which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company in
issue from time to time.
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 23. BRETE(&)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no outstanding 2017 }20165F12 A31 8 » &k
share options. 17 7 BB AR HE -
Details of share options granted by the Company under the Share AATREE2016F12 318 IEFER
Option Scheme to the Directors, employees and consultants of BERETERES  ARAEES RE
the Company and the movement in such holdings during the year BRI 2 BIRERFTSERE CZB T
ended 31 December 2016 were as follow: B
Number of share options
LEvHE
Outstanding Cancelled/  Qutstanding
asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat
Name or category of Date of Exercise Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
participant grant period price* 2016 the year the year the year 2016
o6 e
1518 KER 125318
SRERLIER RHRE i freE HATE  RERRE  REEAR  BE/AR AR
(HKS)
(1)
Directors | E
M. Gu Xu Bty 11192015 11/92015-101972016 025 5,095,228 - - (5,295,228) -
. Chan Cheong Yee RE&LE 111972015 11/972015-10/972016 025 5,095,228 - - (5,295,228) -
Mr. Lam Chun Ho isEyins 11192015 11/92015-101972016 0.5 59522 - - (529522) -
. Faris orahim Taha Ayoub  Fari lorahim Taha AyoubzzEe 11/9/2015 11/92015-101972016 025 529,522 - - (529,522) -
. Huang Liangkuai ERRiE 111972015 11/92015-10/972016 025 529,522 - - (529,522) -
Sub-otal gt 12,179022 - - (1m0 -
Employees e 111972015 11/92015-10/972016 05 18533299 - - (18533299) -
Consultants s 192015 11/92015-1092016 05 529529 - - (2529 -
Total & 36,007,550 - - (36007550 -
* The exercise price and the amount of share options had been adjusted due to * HR201651 B e A% - B IRE 2 1TE(E
the right issue completed in January 2016. K EEB D VR -
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24. ISSUED CAPITAL 24, BRITRAK
Number Nominal
of shares amount
RHEE HfE
HK$
BT
Issued and fully paid BEITRER

Ordinary shares of nominal amount 7201712 H31 BB REE

HK$0.5 each at 31 December 2017 0.5 T EiBAX 778,831,198 389,415,599
Ordinary shares of nominal amount R20165F12 A31 B EBREE

HK$0.5 each at 31 December 2016 0.5 Ll 222,523,200 111,261,600
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RATRRASBBMIT -
follows:

Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BRITRG
E BRITRE R RER st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1H 618,120,000 61,812,000 326,516,058 388,328,058
Rights issue (Note (a)) GER) 309,060,000 30,906,000 41,723,100 72,629,100
Placing shares (Note (b)) B &R (FitsH(b)) 185,436,000 18,543,600 7,417,440 25,961,040
Share consolidation (Note (c)) 15 & B (BTEE() (890,092,800) - - -
Share issue expenses W ELTH Y - - (3,273,036) (3,273,036)
At 31 December 2016 and 20165124318 &

1 January 2017 201741 A1H 222,523,200 111,261,600 372,383,562 483,645,162
Rights issue with bonus issue (Note (d)) A% RRATRR 21T (Fi1=H(d)) 556,307,998 278,153,999  (111,261,599) 166,892,400
Share issue expenses BT X - = (5,848,831) (5,848,831)
At 31 December 2017 R2017412A318 778,831,198 389415599  255273,132 644,688,731
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24,

25.

26.

ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a) On 14 January 2016, a total of 309,060,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.235 per share for a total cash consideration,
before the related issue expenses, of HK$72,629,100. The issued and fully paid
capital of the Company was increased to HK$92,718,000 and resulted in a
share premium of HK$41,723,100, before deducting the rights issues expenses
of HK$2,494,204.

(b) On 23 June 2016, a total of 185,436,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
were placed at a price of HK$0.14 per share for a total cash consideration,
before the related issue expense, of HK$25,961,040. The issued and fully
paid capital of the Company was increased to HK$111,261,600 and resulted
in a share premium of HK$7,417,440, before deducting the share placement
expense of HK$778,832.

(0) In September 2016, share consolidation of every five issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.10 each into one consolidated share of HK$0.50.

(d) On 23 January 2017, a total of 333,784,800 ordinary shares at par value of
HK$0.50 per share and 222,523,198 bonus shares were issued for a total cash
consideration, before the related issue expenses, of HK$166,892,400. The issued
and fully paid capital of the Company was increased to HK$389,415,599,
before deducting the rights issue expenses of HK$5,848,831.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the net assets
of the Company as at 31 December 2017 of HK$118,179,676
(2016: HK$467,873,765) and on 778,831,198 ordinary shares
being in issue as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 222,523,200
ordinary shares).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Company had the following
transactions with related parties during the Year:

Investment Manager — China Everbright Securities (HK)
Limited

The Investment Manager is responsible to manage, supervise
and direct the investment, disposition and re-investment of the
assets of the Company, on a discretionary basis, but subject to
the investment objective and restrictions of the Company. The
Investment Manager is entitled to receive management fees for its
respective services in terms of the agreement dated 30 December
2016. Details of the fees to which the Investment Manager is
entitled are provided in note 11 to the financial statements.

The Directors consider the key management personnel of the
Company comprise of its Board of Directors, whose remuneration is
shown in note 8 to the financial statements.

24,

25.

26.
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) 572,629,100 7T ° ANA A B 31T R4
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 27. ZEHETEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BRI ABRMNNBERRZEREEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: N
2017 20175
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

BATEEBERIIEZ
SREE
Designated
as such
upon initial Held for Loans and
recognition trading receivables Total
RERER EXK
BrEE HFEEE YR @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included in deposits st ARSI RAE - - 568,162 568,162
Amount due from brokers JENAS 42 AFRIR - - 5,732,651 5,732,651
Financial assets at fair value through ~ ZAFEEBER
profit or loss SRz SREE 106,567,621 75,663,864 - 182,231,485
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE - - 3,653,633 3,653,633
106,567,621 75,663,864 9,954,446 192,185,931
Financial liabilities SRIEE
At amortised
cost
RS A
HK$
BT
Other payables and accruals EAbfE R SRIB R EET &R 1,714,058
Amount due to brokers FERT AR 42 AFRIE 5,646,820
Amount due to a related company JE —EIRAE R A 5RIE 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings ERESRREE 66,976,320
74,417,198
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 27. @& eI AE(E)
(Continued)
2016 20164
Financial assets SRVEE

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

BATEEBREIIRL

SREE
Designated
as such
upon initial Held for Loans and
recognition trading receivables Total
RERER 604
FFIETE HIEEE JEWTRIE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT o BT BT
Financial assets included in deposits ~ FTAREHEREE - - 522,206 522,206
Amount due from brokers JEY A 42 NFRIR - - 13 13
Financial assets at fair value through AT EEBERE
profit or loss LERERE 99,947,569 600,251,989 - 700,199,558
Cash and cash equivalents BekBe%E - - 13,824,284 13,824,284
99,947,569 600251989 14,346,503 714,546,061
Financial liabilities TRIBE
At amortised
cost
R SER R
HK$
BT
Other payables and accruals H bS58 MR & A 1,913,826
Amount due to brokers FEISHE 42 AFUE 169,125,134
Amount due to a related company FES —EREE R B 5IE 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings ENERNEE 77,285,628
248,404,588
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining

and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

(a)

28. AV {ETE

DFHEER

ARRERTINEREELKES

BMTEZRAE:

FM-AIHBEEXBBENEE

M5 HRE CREAR)

F - REKFE ABEZKHE
EATEREE  BYQNTENE

JBE KRS E M

F=R—RIEKFRAERTAE
RHE - BEQFEFEBERHN

fhR{E My

31 December 2017

2017%12A31AH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8R =R =4 st
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value RAFEERERYE
through profit or loss: ZERBE
Listed iy
— Equity securities - EnEs 68,865,123 - 6,798,741 75,663,864
Unlisted LM
— Private equity funds -fLEkEEe - - 531,630 531,630
- Private equities — LB ARE - - 106,035991 106,035,991
68,865,123 - 113,366,362 182,231,485
31 December 2016
20165124318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ FH E=8 st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEERERE
through profit or loss: LEREARE -
Listed il
— Equity securities —RnEs 600,251,989 - - 600,251,989
Unlisted LM
~ Private equity funds -EREED - - 20,608,602 20,608,602
— Private equities —FLERE - - 79,338,967 79,338,967
600,251,989 - 99,947,569 700,199,558
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

When fair values of listed and quoted investments at the
reporting date are based on quoted market prices in active
market, without any deduction for transaction costs, the
instruments are within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

When fair values of equity securities at the reporting date
represent quoted prices in market that are considered less
than active or consensus prices derived by third parties using
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data, those equity securities
are included within Level 2 of the hierarchy.

For all other financial instruments, the Company determines
fair value using valuation techniques.

Valuations are the responsibility of the Board of Directors of
the Company. The valuation of investments in the suspended
listed equity securities, private equity funds and the private
equities are performed by management of the Company and
reviewed by the investment committee of the Company. The
investment committee considers the appropriateness of the
valuation method and inputs, and may request alternative
valuation methods applied to support the valuation arising
from the method chosen. Any changes in valuation methods
are discussed and agreed with the Company’s Board of
Directors.

The fair value of suspended investments which do not
resume trading in a short period of time subsequent to year
end, for which there is an absence of quoted price, was
estimated by the management using guideline publicly traded
company method or adjusted net assets value method, as
appropriate. The management then adjusted the valued price
if arrived at using guideline publicly traded company method
by a marketability discount. Such valuation methods are
generally accepted in the industry. The model incorporates
unobservable data inputs, which include market value of
invested capital multiples and the marketability discount ratio,
as described below.

28. AV{EFTE(E)

(a)

FETEEREBR AR / FIR 2017
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WRHEAR LM RREREZRA
FEAZEERT S LTS HRE
REE(TMBRZHAA) - BIBRE
TAEURERE R -

HRHE AR BB SF < A FE
REETNEERNEOHRE @ HFE=
SERABERT(AEEEEAE
YR E & R E TS BURT 8
R)BHMAE - AIRTABNE
MEZMR -

HEEMERIANS ARFME
REERMEE AFE -

MENTBAAREEENET - E
FEEz EhESEs  LERE
EE MALEBREZRENEETR
ARREEREETT  WEHARA
REZEQEN -REZBEZE
HETDERBAENSEN  HE
ZREMEMEETEAITRIE
i 75 A EBEE(E » T
BN REPHEARFEESE
KFE

HEFEEZRENFRE /K
HEAREREERE AL ER
B AEAFEREREER LD
NEESERRAEEEFETER
fhEt(EE) - EREBERAIER
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BEXEEEARRE - ZBEEBRETX
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The investments in the private equity funds are not quoted
in an active market. Transactions in such investments do
not occur on regular basis. The Company uses the net asset
values ("NAV") of the funds to determine the fair value of the
investments held as the Company determined that their NAV
were determined on a fair value basis and NAV per unit of
equity represented the price in which shareholders subscribe
for and redeem from the funds.

The Company invested in private equities which are not
quoted in an active market. The fair value of the private
equities at 31 December 2017 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out as at that date by independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Company. The valuation of the investments in these private
entities used discounted cash flow projections based on
estimates made by management of the Company and are
within level 3 of fair value hierarchy.
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Quantitative information of significant unobservable

28. AV{EFTE(E)

(a) AFESRE)

EATTBEHABZEELH —

inputs — Level 3 F=4R
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input fair value
FERTHE WAE FUBEHAE
8 AVE  HERN WAE BE HAVEZBE
HK$'000
TERT
As at 31 December 2017
12017%12A318
Equity securities in Hong Kong 3,686  Guideline publicly Market value of 12.33  Higher the EBITDA,
traded company invested capital higher the fair value
method multiples to
EBITDA
BRERES FMARIESE FIRER A EBITDAMS - A V&
FLAEBITDA s
Market value of 16.81  Higher the EBIT,
invested capital higher the fair value
multiples to EBIT
FREARZME EBITHR - AFE
FUAEBIT it
Marketability 50%  Higher the
discount marketability
discount, lower the
fair value
mEREENE s ne8TE
wE - ATERE
Equity securities in Hong Kong 1,000  Guideline publicly Market value of 9.25  Higher the EBITDA,
traded company invested capital higher the fair value
method multiples to
EBITDA
EREGES FARIRSA FiREAR A EBITDAM® * ATE
FLAEBITDA s
Market value of 10.58  Higher the EBIT,
invested capital higher the fair value
multiples to EBIT
FREARZME BITHE - ATE
FLAEBIT s
Marketability 50%  Higher the
discount marketability
discount, lower the
fair value
mSREENE mSneEIE
#e ATELE
Equity securities in Hong Kong 2,113 Adjusted net assets ~ N/A NA  N/A
value method
BRERES RREEFENE  TER NER  NER
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 28. A EFTE(E)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) DAFESEH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EAFTHEHABZETEEL —
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) E=4R(E)
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Range of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input fair value
FETABE BAE FUBEBAE
A AVE  RERN BWAE g8 HAVEZBEE
HK$'000
TR
As at 31 December 2017
(Continued)

RW2017512A31R (&)

Unlisted equity securities 106,036  Discount cash flow  Discount rate for 13% t020%  Higher the discount
discounting rate, lower the fair
estimated cash value
flows

FLIRESEES ERBER EREHARER 13%%20% BREHS  ATE
BB % AR

Discount rate 25%1030%  Higher the discount
for lack of rate of lack of
marketability marketability, lower

the fair value

RAOTSREIEN 5%E30%  ROTIHREBIEAR
i3k RE@gs - ATE

fiLAliy

Unlisted equity funds 532 Dealing price of N/A N/A  N/A

the fund derived
from the net asset
value of the fund
FEmikEES HeEEFEEE TER TER  TNER
ZEER5E
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 28. A EFTE(E)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) DAFESEH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EAFTHEHABZETEEL —
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) FEZR(E)
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Range of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input fair value
N ) FERTHE WAE FUBEHAE
A AYE  HERE BAER gE HATEZBE
HK$'000
TERT
As at 31 December 2016
R2016512A31H
Unlisted equity securities Discount cash flow  Discount rate for 16% to 19%  Higher the discount

discounting
estimated cash
flows

rate, lower the fair
value

FEmERER HRBER HRREM 8 16%%19% BRE#E  ATE
B BiE
Discount rate 25% t030%  Higher the discount
for lack of rate of lack of
marketability marketability, lower
the fair value
RIS AR 25%%30% HOmERELL
BR% E3EESI
AHEBE
Unlisted equity funds 20,609  Dealing price of N/A N/A  N/A
the fund derived
from the net asset
value of the fund
FEmiERES EeEE¥aEs TER NER  NER

EBREESRE LEBERE
REFEREE EMEREFNER
RRE=ZFIKE -

The investments in private equity funds, private equities and
suspended listed equity securities are recognised as a Level 3
investments.
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 28. A EFTE(E)

DFEFRGE)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a)

AEEEZRAFEIERD M

the Year are as follows: T

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$ HK$
AT BIT
At 1 January M1A1H 99,947,569 80,562,687
Purchases BE 65,380,000 38,419,040
Sales HHE (27,696,772) -
Transfer from Level 1 to Level 3 WE—REBREZE=R 40,018,660 -
Total loss recognised in REzmAER
profit or loss (Note) pd Sp=FEN G (64,283,095) (19,034,158)
At 31 December ®12H31H 113,366,362 99,947,569
Note: FfsE -
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Total realised gains relating to financial assets at fair R AVEBBIERTIFEZ S REE
value through profit or loss ZBERWaEE
Private equity funds — The Cayman Islands IEREES -FEHS 696,772 -
Total (losses)/gains included in profit or loss that is AR EHRATISZEEERBAER
attributable to the change in unrealised gains/ W/ (BB EBEETABRZ
(losses) relating to those assets held at the end of (E518),/ WssaE
reporting period
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATERRERIIEZEMEAE
Suspended listed equity securities — LEEBE 2 FTERES—

Hong Kong BB (33,219,919) -
Private equity funds — The Cayman Islands IEREES -FEHS (5.076,972) (26,954,085)
Private equities — British Virgin Islands LERE - ABELES (15,978,976) 14,119,936
Private equities — Hong Kong LB E - (10,704,000) (6,200,009)

(64,283,095) (19,034,158)

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the total gains or losses
recognised, including those for assets held at the end of reporting period, are
presented in profit or loss in “net (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss”.
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 28. AVEFTE(&A)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) DAFESEH(E)
As at 31 December 2017, the Company reclassified three M2017F 128318 » ARRHE
listed equity securities from Level 1 to Level 3 following the BEEEERB B LMERES
suspension of trading of the investments. Those financial BE—REFOIEEE=HR - %=
assets are namely (1) Town Health International Medical ERMEELAREREREEELEER
Group Limited (stock code: 3886), (2) New Ray Medicine PRAF (MRS - 3886) : (2)%THK
International Holding Limited (stock code: 6108) and (3) BRI IR AR A T (R 5K
Lerado Financial Group Company Limited (stock code: 1225). 6108) REMERHEEERA A

(R HREE - 1225) »

Transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy, are deemed NFEERSHF 2 HOEBRERE
to have occurred at the end of the reporting period. RS IRE AL -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of fair FRREFE_F AW BEERENF
value measurement. BitE -

The following table shows the total amount of all transfers of TRINTFABEERATFESERE R
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss from Level EREE-—M7BEATEERER
1 to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: YRz SR EEERE

Transfer from
Level 1 to Level 3

BE—REERE
E=H
Financial assets at fair value through BRATHESBERYIRZ
profit or loss TREE
— Listed equity securities — FhEmES 40,018,660
The amount shown above represented the fair values FXFIREEETVERERFZENEZ
based on last traded price of the securities prior to trade BEVAIZRERSBZ ANFE -
suspensions.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no HZE2016F12A31BILFEE » &
transfer of fair value measurement between Level 1 and —REE R BN EFE W E
Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3 fair value W NEEREREBEEE SN
measurements. ANEERE -
The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured AAEF2017F & 2016F 12 A 31
at fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. Y EE g A EENSmE
?g% o
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29. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 29. B RERME
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities REMETBZAEEE
Loan payable
and
borrowings
ERERREER
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2017 M201751 A1H 77,285,628
Proceeds from borrowings BEZFS5IA 35,000,000
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (45,309,308)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 66,976,320
30. COMMITMENTS 30. AiE
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had future aggregate 2017128318 » ARG AT
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases KEHETHARRKEHENRBERKR
approximately as follows: QNN
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$ HK$
BT I
Within one year —FRA 495,000 948,000
In the second year BEF 176,000 140,000
671,000 1,088,000
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Company’s objective in managing risk is the creation and
protection of shareholders’ value. The ultimate responsibility in
defining and maintaining the Company’s risk control framework,
setting the appropriate risk parameters for the Company and in
continuously monitoring compliance of the Company’s portfolio
with the investment objective and policies and investment
restrictions lies with the Board of Directors of the Company, that
will be advised by the Investment Manager.

A risk committee consisting of executive director and an
independent non-executive director has been formed to monitor the
operational and portfolio risks to the Company. The risk committee
will monitor the Investment Manager including reviewing whether
the investment objective and policies and investment restrictions
are being followed by the Investment Manager. In case of any
deviation, the risk committee will discuss deviations with the
Investment Manager immediately and monitor any agreed remedial
action. For all material deviations the risk committee will formulate
recommendations to the Board on the appropriate remedial actions
to be made. The risk committee will meet on a monthly basis, or
more regularly if a meeting is requested by any risk committee
member.

31.

o BT

BHREREEERRBER

ARRATEEEREE BRI 81E & R &R
REE -ARFAEFTRERTELRE
ARARWERZEHIER - REARAA
ERRB2HBEBEERARANKE
MANEBRERE B R RBERMRE RS
MREREE REEEBARMKAESRZS

REER -

ARBEKLRARZEES  KEBREH
TEERIFNTESE - NEERAQFN

L2ERRERARR - RRZEEKE
RREEEANKR  BHEEAREE
BABGERBRKREBBERHERNKER
B o B EAIREE - ARE 8 AR
BIEE IR AN REEE L R EM
EREBNMHRITE - HRABEEANR
BIER RRZEERMEZTSROK
BUEEHRITENEZ - RREZEEE
AREg—X MEMNREREZEENEE
KRG INE &R R -
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Company is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
equity securities investments in private equity funds and investment
in private equities which are classified in the statement of financial
position as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in note
15 as at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis below demonstrates management’s best
estimate of the effect on the net assets attributable to equity
holders of the Company due to a reasonably possible change in
equity indices or fair values of the listed investments with all other
variables held constant. In practice, the actual trading results may
differ from the sensitivity analysis below and the difference could
be material.

Listed equity securities

The Company’s investments in equity securities are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end
of the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest
points during the years were as follows:

31.

31 December 2017

PR EEERERBCR ()

REEEE R

P SR B S R R 2 48 B R 5 BUKF R fE B
ESEEEYMERNERESATE
TEREEER o AR BIR AN B A &
MR ERRRIR B 2 BB ERI R
B RERENERLEBREESAN
B BHERE MR ERRARAERIR
NPEEBESIFATHEEIRZL
SRR E (MF15)

UATEEREDMIRHEMAEMEE
RETENBERLT  BEEEBEHRERH
FEHREZ ATV EREAEHTE
RARIESFTE ABIGEEFEMEN
RIEMR c EEET  BEREXZERK
SHRTXBREIMAMAE  Z2%K
GEK o

LR EF

RRARZEREFRE N BB
Ee

FRAEREHRRNFLORH B EERH
REREF - TIEFR AN MISRER
g URHERAFEZENERS LRE
BN

High/low

2017512A31H =/ &

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB BEEEH

29,919.2  30,199.7/21,883.8
31 December 2016 High/low
2016512 A31H B2/ &

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB BEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 31. BIEREEEERBER(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued) SEERR(E)
Listed equity securities (Continued) LHREES(E)
2017 20174
% of reasonable
possible change Change in
of the relevant net assets
Relevant market index Beta benchmark index (before tax effect)
HEEEER
RETHET EEFELY
EBmSEY i ER (BrBiRss &an)
HKS
B
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index B - B4R 0.013 £10 +98,363
2016 20164
% of reasonable
possible change Change in
of the relevant net assets
Relevant market index Beta benchmark index (before tax effect)
BEREEY
ABMEE EEFERY
BB mSER i iER (REBZEm)
HKS
BT
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index EE-E4HEY 1622 +10 +97 360,873
Private equity funds and private equities HERBECRIERE
At 31 December 2017, the loss (2016: profit) before tax would M2017F12A8318  MREZAFE L
increase/decrease by approximately HK$10,657,000 for the private R TNER10% (201645 : 10%) » FLEMK
equity funds and private equities (2016: HK$9,995,000) should EEES MALEREZ BT ATEE(2016
the fair values of the investments increase/decrease by 10% (2016: F R P BIIE I, R4 4910,657,000
10%). BT (20164F 9,995,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that
the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected. To limit this risk, management monitors the Company’s
liquidity position from time to time.

The Company aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements by the ongoing monitoring of cash positions and
future cash flows. The following table summarises the maturity
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within six months equal their
carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting is insignificant. The
table also analyses the maturity profile of the Company’s financial
assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in order to provide a
complete view of the Company’s contractual commitments and
liquidity.

The maturity grouping of financial liabilities is based on the
remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of
when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest
period in which the Company can be required to pay.

Analysis of debt and equity securities at fair value through profit
or loss into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on
which these assets will be realised. For other assets, the analysis
into maturity groupings is based on the remaining period from the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if
earlier, the expected date on which the assets will be realised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk M et

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

AND POLICIES (Continued)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

31. BEREKREEEERBXGE)

At 31 December 2017 7A2017512831H
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 No fixed
On demand 3months 12 months years maturity Total
3f8RZ BEE
RER  SR3ER  DR12(8R 1256 E) i i
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included in deposits st AIREHISREE - - - 568,162 - 568,162
Amount due from brokers RELATE 323500 5,409,151 - - - 5732651
Financial assets at fair value BRATEEBBERTR
through profit or loss LEREE 75,663,864 = - - 106,567,621 182,231,485
Cash and cash equivalents Be LA SE 3,653,633 - - - - 3,653,633
Total financial assets tREELE 79,640,997 5,409,151 - 568,162 106,567,621 192,185,931
Other payables and accurals EthEMTIERETER - 144,823 628,089 - 941,146 1,714,058
Amount due to a brokers ERERATE 5,322,527 324,293 - - - 5,646,820
Amount due to a related company B —HEEARFE - 80,000 - - - 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings EREFREE 66,976,320 - - - - 66,976,320
Total financial liabilties TRARAE 72,298,847 549,116 628,089 - 941,146 74,417,198

FETEEREBR AR / FIR 2017
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RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 31. BIEREEEERBER(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

At 31 December 2016 #20165F12A31H
Lessthan 3 to less than 1105 No fixed
On demand 3months 12 months years maturity Total
fARZE ®ET
w2k OR3ER VRM2(EA 1255 Elkil=) et
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B B B B B
Financial assets included in deposits st AIREHISREE - - - 522,206 - 522,206
Amount due from brokers FENSIE NFOR 13 - - - - 13
Financial assets at fair value RATEFBREENR
through profit or loss LEBARE 600,251,989 - - - 99,947,569 700,199,558
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkRsEE 13,824,284 - - - - 13,824,284
Total financial assets tREELE 614,076,286 - - 522,206 99,947569 714,546,061
Other payables and accruals EthEMTIERETER - 1913826 - - - 1913826
Amount due to brokers ENEEAFIR 166,543,280 2,581,854 - - - 169,125,134
Amount due to a related company  [Ef—FEBARZE - 80,000 - - - 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings EREHRES - - 8000000 69,285,628 - 77,285,628
Total financial liabilities TREESE 166,543,280 4,575,680 8,000,000 69,285,628 - 248,404,588
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Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
and future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market

interest rates.

The majority of the Company’s interest rate exposure arises from
cash and cash equivalents and debt securities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s

31.

PR EEERERBCR ()

MERER
MEREBECRTAMKRRSRERN
BEBEDSMNENEMRBOER

ENNCIPNEI R IR S
FENAREBE

XeRERRE

TRHER  EFEEMEERFIE

profit or loss for the year to a reasonably possible change in interest B RARIAFEBRREFENT S
rates, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity of the BEFNERE - NFEIEE(BRIIAT)
BRERENENBREHE TIZIE
B E

profit or loss for the year (before tax) is the effect of the assumed
changes in interest rates on:

ERRERRAFFRSMN 2 —
FANSFE -

- The net interest for one year, based on the net cash position —
held at the end of the reporting period.

AR HmERREERBEEMN KSR

- Changes in fair value of investments for the year, based on -

revaluing fixed rate financial assets at the end of the reporting BEZFRNRERTEZE -
period.
In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the below FE L BB HEET L HE T il g
sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant. EnTBMER B =R ARE -
Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of
interest changes in
Change in income/ fair value of
Net exposure basis point (expense)  investments
RSN/ RENFE
(i) -]
FER BEHeH BEE BEE
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
2017 20174
Cash and cash equivalents RekBe%E 3,653,633 +50 118,268 -
Loan payable and borrowings EREAREE 66,976,320 +50 +334,882 -
2016 20165
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%dE 13,824,284 +50 69,121 -
Loan payable and borrowings ENEZREE 77,285,628 +50 +386,428 -
FERIFEEIREBR AR/ F5R 2017 137




Notes to Financial Statements

RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Since
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the
Board of Directors considers the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk to be minimal; as such no sensitivity analysis has been
presented in these financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the Company by failing to discharge
an obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is monitored
by the Investment Manager on an ongoing basis.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents and investments placed with DBS Bank Limited and
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, which management
believes is of high credit quality.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations without taking into
account of any collateral held as at the reporting date in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and repurchase shares, the capital
of the Company can vary depending on subscriptions to the
Company and repurchases by the Company. The primary objectives
of the Company’s capital management are to safeguard the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and to invest the
capital in investments meeting the description and risk exposure
indicated in the Company’s prospectus. The Investment Manager
manages the capital of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s investment objectives and policies. The Company is not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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RIS

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

32.

33.

34.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Rights issue on the basis of one rights shares for every eight
existing shares with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus
shares for every one rights shares taken up

After the reporting period, the Company has raised an amount
of approximately HK$47.1 million, net of expenses, by way of the
rights issue of 97,353,899 rights shares and 292,061,697 bonus
shares to the qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of
HK$0.5 (effective subscription price HK$0.125) per rights share on
the basis of one rights shares for every eight existing shares with
bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for every one rights
shares taken up (Closing price of the shares of the Company was
HK$0.130 as at the date of announcement of the rights issue).

The Company is tended to apply such proceeds from the Rights Issue
for the repayment of loan in the sum of HK$35,000,000 and partial
repayment of coupon notes in the sum of HK$31,500,000.

Details of the rights issue were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 23 January 2018, circular dated 5 February 2018
and prospectus dated 6 March 2018.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018.

32.

33.

34.

o BT

BREMRSEE

RES\RRAEROER —RERRKRD
M EEHRRRESEE - RERRKSD
BR=RARHEERITAR

RER% - AREIEBEBRESRER
&7 0.58 T2 REE (ERREME0.125
57T I 25 1797,353,899 % (A% B 1
292,061,697 ALK T & ERKRE - &£&
$FE#I47,100,00078 7T (BB FXS) -
BEEAEREN\RABRMHER —RHE
I B 1 Ko A — IR R AR AR D JE 2 = %
AR (R AR AE B2 Wm
B/50.130/87T) °

B

KRR BB RS EREBEER
& $£35,000,0008 T R EEIBHELE
¥4 431,500,000/ 7T ©

iR 2 FBEEN AR R B HR20185F1 8

23HZ A AENBEA2018F2A5H 2@
FLAN HERA201843 A6H 2 B ETR -

e EE

ETHBRBECDENRR  UNEASF
Bz2553 -

B SRk Ayt

ARG ROAN2018F3 A28 EEES
HofE R AR T1) 3 o
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Summary of Financial Information

BB E

31 December 2017 2017512A31H

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Company AR FZAAEATRFEE 7 EENEENAE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited ~ #Z (3B 2 PIB & EZ I BHRR )0 T -
financial statements is set out below:

RESULTS ¥E

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
BZ20175 HZ2016E EZ0155 HE014E HE013F
12A31R 12A318 128318 127318 128318
ILEE ILEE JI%:2E; LtFE IEE
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT B
REVENUE WA 821,073 2,470,078 10,945,842 2,009,770 5,589,483
PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX BREAEH/ (Bi) (509,376,596) 57,041,138 (204,133,713) 162,709,685 13,505,512
Income Tax FisH (1,361,062) (9,167,538) 34,597,597 (26,371,862) (2,364,725)
PROFITALOSS) AND TOTAL AR EEREREAAERS
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)INCOME EREH/(BE)
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO R2E(ER)/isefE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (510,737,658) 47873600 (169,536,116) 136,337,823 11,140,787
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20165 20155 20145 20134
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 192,596,874 716,278,353 340,009,316 477,169,115 261,619,338
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (74,417,198)  (248,404,588) (15,386,255) (24,677,703) (7,291,266)

118,179,676 467,873,765 324,683,061 452,491,412 254,328,072
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